2o b %77’7

~ J/

04027383
THE MODEL WORKS
Coventry Health Care
2003 Annual Report
|

PROCESSED
APR 27 2004
AR







PROFITABLE

Selected Consolidated Financial Information
(in thousands except per share and membership data)

Operations Statement Data‘"

Operating revenues
Operating earnings

Earnings before income taxes

Net earnings

Basic earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share

Balance Sheet Data®™
Cash and investments

Total assets

Total medical liabilities
Long-term liabilities

Senior notes

Redeemable convertible preferred stock
Stockholders’ equity

Operating Data®

Medical loss ratio®
Operating earnings ratio

Administrative expense ratio

Basic weighted average shares outstanding
Diluted weighted average shares outstanding
Risk membership, continuing operations
Non-risk membership, continuing operations

Network rental membership,

continuing operations

2003

$4,535,143
366,197
393,064
250,145
2.84

2.75

$1,405,922
1,981,736
597,190
27,358
170,500

928,998

81.2%

8.1%

12.0%
88,113
90,765
1,899,000
484,000

678,000

December 31,

2002 2001 2000 1999
$3,576,905 $3,147,245 $2,604,910 $2,162,372
200,670 91,108 62,515 47,855
225,741 134,682 102,068 76,000
145,603 84,407 61,340 43,435
1.64 0.87 0.69 0.49
1.58 0.83 0.62 0.45
$1,119,120 $ 952,491 $ 752,450 $ 614,603
1,643,440 1,451,273 1,239,036 1,081,583
558,599 522,854 444,887 362,786
21,691 10,649 6,443 10,445
175,000 — — —
— — — 47,095
646,037 689,079 600,430 480,385
83.3% 86.0% 85.8% 86.1%
5.6% 2.9% 2.4% 2.2%
12.2% 12.0% 12.7% 13.8%
88,802 97,485 89,282 88,538
91,865 101,812 98,635 96,238
1,640,000 1,522,000 1,437,000 1,202,000
395,000 319,000 276,000 238,000
788,000 730,000 593,000 684,000

(1) Operations Statement Data include the results of operations of acquisitions since the date of acquisition. Balance Sheet Data reflect acquisitions as of December 31, of the year of acquisition. See the

notes to consolidated financial

for detail on our acquisitions.

(2} Medical loss ratio excludes non-recurring charges and recovéries recorded in 2000 and 1999, For detail on these charges and tecoveries, refer to the notes included in the Company’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002.
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THE MoDEL WORKS

DEAR FELLOW SHAREHOLDERS,

[ am delighted to report the past yeaf was our best ever. Our performance across the board
demonstrates that the Coventry model works and is gaining momentum. We grew membership and
revenues organically and completed two strategic acquisitions. We managed medical costs to one of
the lowest trends in the industry and kept overhead in check while improving service levels. Our
proven ability to take local market share from much bigger national competitors, growing both the

top and bottom line, positions us for continuing profitable growth.

Milestones of Success

By just about any quantitative measure, 2003 was a record-setting year. Qur year-end enrollment of 2.38 million
was a 17 percent increase over 2002. This includes 244,000 members added via PersonalCare and Altius, acquisitions
that opened new markets. Another 157,000 members joined Coventry’s established plans, achieving an organic
growth rate of 7.7 percent, among the best in the industry, and further solidifying our position in our home mar-
kets. Revenue growth kept pace with enrollment growth, at 27 percent above 2002. Furthermore, this growth was
profitable, with earnings per share up 74 percent. Improvements in standardized medical quality scores, satisfac-"
tion surveys, claims auto-adjudication rates and call-handling times attest to a foundation of quality, responsive
service and efficient use of resources—the keys to sustainable growth. These milestones of success did not go unno-
ticed. Investors responded by driving our share price up 122 percent, and the national media ranked Coventry

among America’s top performing, best run corporations (see page 11).

Managing for the Long Term

Yet success is never final; it's just one year's results. Nonetheless, the sound business model, proven practices and
responsible culture we've built over the last seven years maximize the likelihood of enduring success. In our busi-
ness model, we focus on doing one thing well: operating local health plans. We know which advantages flow from
local decision-making and which from centralized management, and our organization extends those advantages.
Using proven practices, we “execute on the details,” getting solid results from progressive, data-driven programs
such as locally tailored benefits; statistically based action plans for network and medical management; and predic-
tive modeling methodologies that deliver the right interventions to the right members at the right time. We nurture
a responsible culture, in which understanding and managing costs is a core competency expressed in policies such

as internal benchmarks, monthly executive expense reviews, a conservative reserve strategy and balance sheet

OUR PERFORMANCE ACROSS THE BOARD DEMONSTRATES THAT THE
COVENTRY MODEL WORKS AND IS GAINING MOMENTUM.




left 10 right: Dale B. Wolf, Executive Vice President, CFO and Treasurer + Allen . Wise, President
and CEO - Thomas P. McDonough, Executive Vice President and COO

OUR OPERATIONAL PRACTICES AND FINANCIAL CONTROLS ARE CONSISTENT
YEAR OVER YEAR BECAUSE OUR DECISIONS REFLECT COVENTRY'S GROWTH MODEL.

protection in M&A negotiations. Fiscal responsibility is not a brake on innovation, however. We always manage for
the long term—for instance, paying the short-term price for system conversions that will pay off in the long run.
Finally, our operational practices and financial controls are consistent year over year because our decisions reflect

Coventry’s growth model, not what the competition is doing in particular markets.

Springhoard for Profitabie Growth

It’s tough to operate health plans these days. Competition is keen as the industry consolidates, provider negotiations
are difficult, customers are demanding, regulators are rigorous, and the media are often critical. Demand for services
rises even as the economy puts stress on the ability of the private and public sectors to pay. As a leading health
insurance carrier, we can't be content to play “middle man” in the delivery and financing of care. We need to bring
more efficiency to the system at lower cost. Fortunately, Coventry is in a great position to meet this challenge. To
grow into our fullest potential will take the same strengths that produced our 2003 results and all our achievements
to date: diversity in markets, products and customers; focus on the details; low cost structure under tight control;
investment in smart, tenacious, results-oriented people. The last of these factors being the most important, I want

to thank our 4,000 dedicated employees for making 2003 such a resounding success.

A%ﬂ(/xa«

Allen E Wise
President and Chief Executive Officer
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UNDERSTANDING INDIVIDUAL CUSTOMERS' NEEDS
TAKES LOCAL INSIGHT. MEETING THOSE NEEDS IN A COST-EFFECTIVE MANNER
<"’\ TAKES NATIONAL REACH. COMBINING LOCAL AND CENTRALIZED STRENGTHS IS

THE ESSENCE OF OUR BUSINESS MODEL.

Local Focus + Centralized Expertise

What is the Coventry model? Essentially, it's a strategy for business

TOTAL MEMBERSHIP . . I
{in thousands) growth and operational excellence that recognizes two principles:

2,500 - (1) customers want their health benefits delivered locally, with

decisions made by people who know their needs and preferences;
2000 and (2) administering those local plans can be made more
1500 cost-effective through a centralized infrastructure benefiting from

economies of scale. From this recognition flow local branding,

1,000 product design, sales and support, network management and med-
ical management, coupled with centralized customer service, infor-

500
mation technology, underwriting and actuarial functions. This

combination yields a low cost structure, high-level execution, and

‘99 ‘00 ‘01 02 03 o ) B )
adaptability to changing market conditions that other business

models cannot match. It allows us to prosper in good times and
bad; to make prudent acquisitions and quickly assimilate them;
and to offer members, groups and investors consistent results with
no surprises. Proof is in our profitable growth: 24.3% average
annual revenue growth over the past 7 years with 51% EPS growth

over the same period.
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Growth is no surprise given the mode!: the low cost structure that it promotes allows |

Coventry to offer the broadest product portfolio in each market at 2 competitive.

range of products to multiple market segments in a variety of places, Coventiys

mizes exposure to fluctuations in local economic, demographic and regu]’at,ory" cone
ditions. With literally thousands of plan variations across the spectrum of manage‘d' |
care, we appeal to all segments of the commercial market: small, mid-size and large j
groups and ASO customers in roughly equal numbers. The industries we cover [
vary as well, further distributing risk. Our Medicare and Medicaid programs are also ‘
structured for diversity, with products tailored to the population, rate structure and
regulatory climate of each market. Having such a wealth of offerings has helped

Coventry win top three market share in 11 of its 14 markets.

Qur low cost structure also lets us service our diverse products cost effectively. Our
administrative costs as a share of operating revenue have declined annually since
1999, with the ratio currently below 12 percent. To put this efficiency in perspective,
according to the government’s Centers for Medicare & Medicaid analysis, the average
publicly traded managed care company paid 16 percent of its revenues in adminis-
trative costs in 2002 (the most recent year for which these figures are available), and

this level has rernained essentially flat since 1999.



Coventry Service Areas

Custamear Sarvice lentars

Delaware
Georgia
Iinois
lowa
Kansas
Louisiana
Maryland
Missouri

Nebraska
North Carolina
Ohio
Pennsylvania
Utah

Virginia

West Virginia

(O Cranberry, Pennsylvania

O Harrisburg, Pennsylvania
O Newark, Delaware

Bismarck, Narth Dakota







HANDS-ON MANAGEMENT OF THE INTEGRATION
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PROCESS GUIDES NEWLY ACQUIRED PLANS TO PROFITABLE GROWTH, USUALLY

IN LESS THAN 24 MONTHS. OUR 2003 ACQUISITIONS DID EVEN BETTER.

Becoming Coventry
The growth-generating advantages of the Coventry model go

beyond winning and keeping customers. They are seen in our ability
NET ACQUISITION GROWTH

(in thousands) to assimilate—and optimize—new acquisitions in short order.

200 Before a deal is final, Coventry's exhaustive due diligence process

T ' [- lets management identify and prioritize improvement opportuni-
150 ties. Once the deal closes, a cross-functional team starts imple-

menting action plans and communicating with employees.

Underwriting is brought in-house, and financial systems are con-

100
verted beginning on day one. Whether the acquisition was a mar-
501 ket performer or a turnaround candidate, it typically achieves
profitable growth within 24 months of the acquisition, even when
0 the integration involves wholesale replacement of systems and the

99 00 ‘01 ‘02 '03 L
reorganization of sales forces or management. Coventry's M&A

experience makes this possible: 13 successful acquisitions since

1999. The latest acquisitions are no exception. The integration of

Altius Health Plan, a profitable and growing Utah plan acquired in
September, is running smoothly and on schedule. The plan has
grown in membership and profitability since the acquisition.
PersonalCare Health Management in [llinois, which we acquired in
February 2003, is now completely integrated and posting impres-
sive claims processing improvements since switching to Coventry’s
IT platform. Both new plans are already accretive to earnings, just as

we expected.
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OPPORTUNITY

The Road Ahead

Because the Coventry maodel is such a powerful engine of profitable
growth, shareholders can look forward to more positive results.
We will broaden our product portfolio as well as offering more
wellness options. Our networks will expand too, with statewide
hospital and physician networks planned for 2004. We will selec-
tively focus on the more profitable governmental programs,
including Medicare+Choice and Medicaid in some areas and the
Federal Employee Health Benefits Program. In actuarial and medical
management, look for us to derive more value from recently
implemented data tools, such as contract modeling programs, sta-
tistically driven preauthorization policies, and predictive modeling.
In administration, our centralized customer service organization
and our consolidated IT platform will allow us to leverage staffing
levels as we grow. And even with anticipated acquisitions and
planned system enhancements, we expect IT spending as a percent of
revenues will continue to dedine from its current industry-beating
levels. Customers will experience easier access over multiple inter-
faces as call centers become true contact centers. For all these
reasons, we are eager to face the future with all its challenges and
opportunities. By refining our low cost structure and energizing the
abundant talent in our ranks, we can prevail against tough and
consolidating competition. Market success, in turn, will help us
strengthen the communities we serve. In short, we want to make

the Coventry model work for everyone.
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LEADING BUSINESS PUBLICATIONS REGULARLY CHART THE FINANCIAL PROGRESS OF
AMERICA'S PUBLICLY TRADED COMPANIES, PRINTING RANKINGS AND LISTS THROUGHOUT
THE YEAR. COVENTRY FREQUENTLY APPEARS ON THESE LISTS, BUT NEVER SO PROMINENTLY

- AS IN 2003 HERE'S HOW WE FARED:

Forbes - Farbes’ Platinum 400 identifies "th e B eSt B | g CO m pa n | es
|n Amenc d i trom among publicly :raded- companies with revenues of at least
3% ithiun. Clusen companies “have ihe bast balance of inag and shoit-lesm pecormance.

Fortha socand cnasacubive yage Faunatey madin the let

Barren's -~ The Barron's 500 honor roll ranked Coventry #1 ove ra” amang the 500 largest publicly traded
companies in the US and Canada. The magazine looked at four categories: stock performance, CFROI {cash flow return on

investment, adjusted for inflation and accounling practices! aver a three-year period, projected CFROI and revenue

: paxt year Davna’s auted Doverirgs wpmbecship growih gne sucress Aty seiling, gerprt ang

adnumistrative costs frmly i check. Coveniry moved up from #17 on Barron s 2002 hist.

Wall Street Journal --- in its 2063 Shareholder Scorecard, the WSJ named Coventry the
1 Oth best pe rfo rmer hased an returnc ouer the pact thraa veare
) ‘ Coventry also ranked among the top ten in twn cateqories: Health Care Providers and Most

tmproved Compamies (based on annual earnings gains).

Fortune It was alsn 1hé sernnd staipht year Coveatry mada the Forfuae A1 5.{.,11(,..,5 we AR plprac an thn roetne
Roveniry alsa 1anked twalfth amang [)] gge st one -year investm ent ga INs ==
percentage return of 45 5% (By comparison, the average return for Forfune 500 companics was - 11.8% ) Coventry also
BRUR 538 ApRsEren oo the Farfuna 40 Bt ol Wucks with ine strengest chance of beating the market over the next 12

mipattis-—-one ef orly four companies named wice in a rmw

*Publications’ rankings and lists based on 2002 performance
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion should be read in cenjunctian with the accompanying audited consolidated financial statements and notes thereto.

Executive-Level Overview

General Operations

We are a leading publicly traded managed health care company with approximately 2.4 million members, excluding network rental members, as of
December 31, 2003. We operate a diversified portfolio of local market health plans, insurance companies and provider networks serving 14 markets.
Our operations are based in Bethesda, Maryland with our local markets primarily covering the Mid-Atlantic, Midwest and Southeast regions of the
United States. Our primary focus is owning and operating health plans with a concentration on risk business with mid-sized employer groups.

We operate our health plans with a local focus but with the management expertise, resources and economies of scale of a large, well-capitalized com-
pany. We believe the delivery of health care benefits and services is best managed on a market-by-market basis. Each of our health plans operates
under its _Iocal market name and has local management, including sales and marketing, medical management, contracting and provider relations per-
sonne! that design and manage health benefits to meet the needs of our individual markets. We believe that our local focus enables us to quickly adapt
our products and services to the needs of individual markets and maintain strong relationships with our employer customers, members and health care
providers. We will continue to meet competitive challenges by offering quality products at adequate rates while maintaining our low cost structure.

Highlights of 2003 Performance

s Membership increased 17% over the prior year.

* Revenue increased 27% over the prior year.

* Medical loss ratio of 81.2% improved 210 basis points over the prior year.

» Selling, general and administrative expenses, as & percentage of revenue, improved by 20 basis paints over the prior year.
e QOperating margin of 8.1% improved 250 basis points over the prior year.

¢ Diluted earnings per share increased 74% over the prior year.

* Cash flows from operations was $323.1 million, a 55% improvement over the prior year.

¢ Total cash and investments increased to $1.4 billion, a 26% increase over the prior year.

Operating Revenue and Products

We generate our operating revenues from premiums for a broad range of managed care and management service products. Premiums for our commer-
cial risk products, for which we assume full underwriting risk, can vary. For example, premiums for our preferred provider organization {("PPG") and point
of service ("POS”) products are typically lower than our health maintenance organization {"HMG") premiums due to medical underwriting and higher
deductibles and co-payments that are typically required of the PPO and PGS members. Premium rates for our government programs, Medicare+Chaice
and state-sponsored managed Medicaid, are established by governmental regulatory agencies. These government products are offered in selected mar-
kets where we believe we can achieve profitable growth based upon favorable reimbursement levels, provider costs and regulatory climates.

Revenue for our management services products {“non-risk”} is generally a fixed administrative fee for access to our provider networks and management
services, for which we do not assume underwriting risk. The management services we pravide typically include network management, claims process-
ing, utilization review and quality assurance. In addition, we rent our network of providers {“network rental”}, including claims repricing and utilization
review, to other managed care plans or nan-risk employers and assume no underwriting risk.

During the three years ended December 31, 2003, we experienced substantial growth in operating revenues due to membership increases from acqui-
sitions. We pursue acguisitions that fit into our local market strategy and that we feel are able to operate at target margins for the long term.
Acquisitions must have a manageable regulatory and business climate and have the ability to add value to our company. Additionally, membership
growth was achieved organically through marketing efforts, geographic expansion and increased product offerings.

Our ability to introduce products quickly to each market has helped us to expand our customer base. In particular, we have been able to a add & large vari-
ety of lower cost products, which has proven especially attractive to customers. In some instances, we have introduced products in one market that we
were already administering in another. Such commonality can help not only in properly administering benefit plans from day one, but also in expediting the
regulatory approval processes. Although the approval processes are unigue to each state, common plan documents can provide additional efficiencies.

13
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Operating Expenses .
Our medical costs include medical claims paid under contractual relationships with & wide variety of providers and capitation arrangements. Medical
costs also include an estimate of claims incurred but not reported ("IBNR”).

Our health plans maintain provider networks that furnish health care services through contractual arrangements with physicians, hospitals and ather
health care providers. Most contracted primary care and specialist physicians are compensated under a discounted fee-for-service arrangement. The
majority of our contracts with hospitals provide for inpatient per diem or per case hospital rates. Outpatient services are contracted on a discounted
fee-for-service, a per case basis or in some instances a discount from charges basis. We pay ancitlary providers on a fixed fee schedule or a capitation
basis. Prescription drug benefits are provided through a formulary comprised of an extensive list of drugs. Drug prices are negotiated through a national
network of pharmacies at discounted rates.

A small percentage of our membership is covered by global capitation arrangements. Under the typical arrangement, the provider receives a fixed per-
centage of premium to cover all the medical costs provided to the globally capitated members. Under same capitated arrangements, physicians may
also receive additional compensation from risk-sharing and other incentive arrangements. Global capitation arrangements limit our exposure to the risk
of increasing medical costs, but expose us to risk as to the adequacy of the financial and medical care resources of the provider organization. In addi-
tion to global capitation arrangements, we have capitation arrangements for ancillary services, such as mental health care. We are ultimately respon-
sible for the coverage of our members pursuant to the customer agreements. To the extent that the respective provider organization faces financial
difficulties or otherwise is unable to perform its obligations under the capitation arrangements, we will be required to perform such obligations.
Consequently, we may have to incur costs in doing so in excess of the amounts we would otherwise have to pay under the original global or ancillary
capitation arrangements.

We have established systems to monitor the availability, appropriateness and effectiveness of the patient care we provide. We collect utilization data
in each of our markets that we use to analyze over-utilization or under-utilization of services and assist our health plans in providing appropriate care
for their members and improving patient outcomes in a cost efficient manner. Medical directors also monitor the utilization of diagnostic services and
encourage the use of outpatient surgery and testing where appropriate. Each health pian collects data showing each physician’s utilization profile for
diagnostic tests, specialty referrals and hospitalization collects and presents such data to the health plan’s physicians. The medical directors monitor
these results in an effort to ensure the use of cost-effective, medically appropriate services.

We operate four regional service centers that perform claims processing, premium billing and collection, enrollment and customer service functions for our
plans. Our regional service centers enable us to take advantage of economies of scale, implement standardized management practices at each of our plans
and capitalize on the benefits of our integrated information technology systems. We centralize the underwriting and product pricing functions for our health
plans, which allows us to utilize our underwriting expertise and a disciplined pricing strategy at each of our plans. We believe our centralization of certain
administrative functions at the corporate and regional levels gives us a competitive advantage over local market health plans that lack our resources.

Cash Flows

We generate cash through operations. As a profitable company in an industry that is not capital equipment intensive, we have not needed to use
financing mathods to generate cash for operations. We have a low debt to capital ratio and while we did issue senior notes in 2002 {as described in
Note H to our consolidated financial statements of this Form 10-K), the entire proceeds were used to repurchase a portion of our common stock and
were not used to fund operations. Qur primary use of cash is to pay medical claims. Any excess cash has historically been used for acquisitions and for
repurchases of our common stock.

Critical Accounting Policies

The accaunting palicies described below are ones we consider critical in preparing our consolidated financial statements. Critical accounting policies
are ones that require difficult, subjective, or complex judgments, often as a result of the need to make estimates about the effect of matters that are
inherently uncertain. The judgments and uncertainties affecting the application of these policies include significant estimates and assumptions made
by us using information available at the time the estimates are made. Actual results could differ materially from those estimates.

Revenue Recognition

Managed care premiums are recorded as revenue in the month in which members are entitled to service. Premiums are based on both a per subscriber
contract rate and the number of subscribers in our records at the time of billing. Premium billings are generally sent to employers in the month preced-
ing the month of coverage. Premium billings may be subsequently adjusted to reflect changes in membership as a result of retroactive terminations,
additions, or other changes. Due to early timing of the premium billing, we are able to identify the retroactive adjustments for two subsequent months
billings. Current period revenues are adjusted to reflect these retroactive adjustments.



Based on information received subsequent to generating premium billings, historical trends, bad debt write-offs and the collectibility of specific accounts,
we estimate, on @ monthly basis, the amount of bad debt and future membership retroactivity and adjust our revenue and reserves accordingly.

As of December 31, 2003, we maintained reserves for retroactive billing adjustments of approximately $7.2 million compared with approximately $12.0
million at December 31, 2002. We also maintained reserves for doubtful accounts of approximately $1.4 million and $2.9 million as of December 31,
2003 and 2002, respectively. The calculation for these reserves is based on a percentage of the gross accounts receivable with the reserve percentage
increasing for the older receivables. The reserves have declined as a result of an improvement in the aging of our premium receivables.

We also receive premium payments from the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services ("CMS”) on a monthly basis for our Medicare+Choice mem-
bership. Membership and category eligibility are periodically reconciled with CMS and could result in adjustments to revenue. Premiums collected in
advance are recorded as deferred revenue.

We contract with the Office of Personnel Management {"OPM") to provide managed health care services under the Federal Employee Health Benefits
Program {"FEHBP”). These contracts with the OPM and applicable government regulations establish premium rating arrangements for this program. The
0PM conducts periodic audits of its contractors to, among other things, verify that the premiums established under its contracts are in compliance with
the community rating and other requirements under FEHBP. The OPM may seek premium refunds or institute other sanctions against health plans that
participate in the program. Our contracts are periodically reconciled by us with the OPM and could result in adjustments to revenue. Premiums for serv-
ices to federal employee groups are subject to audit and review by the OPM on a periedic basis. Such audits are usually a number of years in arrears.
We record reserves, on an estimated basis annually, based on appropriate guidelines. Any differences between actual results and estimates are
recorded in the year the audits are finalized.

We currently enter into performance guarantees with employer groups where we pledge that we will meet certain standards. These standards vary
widely and could involve customer service, member satisfaction, claims processing, claims accuracy, telephone on-hoid time, etc. Under these per-
formance guarantees, we could be at risk and may incur penzlties for not maintaining the standards established in the contracts. The risk level varies
by agreesment with penalties based on a variety of calculations including per member per month, percentage of premium, or percentage of administra-
tion fees. Risk levels are evaluated at least quarterly. We estimate our potential exposure and record appropriate reserves. The penalties that we have
incurred have been immaterial and, although, we can not predict with precision the future effect on our results of operations of these penalties, we
expect them to remain immaterial.

Medical Claims Expense and Liabilities .

Medical claims liabilities consist of actual claims reparted but nat paid and estimates of health care services incurred but not reported (“IBNR"). IBNR
estimates are developed using actuarial principles and assumptions that consider, among other things, contractual requirements, historical utilization
trends and payment patterns, benefits changes, medical inflation, product mix, seasonality, membership and other relevant factors. We also establish
reserves, if required, for the probability that anticipated future health care costs and contract maintenance costs under the group ef existing contracts
will exceed anticipated future premiums and reinsurance recoveries on those contracts. These accruals are continually monitored and reviewed, and as
settlements are made or accruals adjusted, differences are reflected in current operations. Changes in assumptions for medical costs caused by
changes in actual experience could cause these estimates to change in the near term. Certain situations require judgment in setting reserves, such as
system conversions, processing interruptions, environmental changes or other factors.

We employ a team of actuaries that have developed, refined and used the same set of reserve models over the past several years. For inpatient
reserves, our models use credibility weighting of lag-based incurred claim estimates (traditional triangle based completion factors) and incurred claims
estimates calculated as authorized days multiplied by per diem forecasts. For non-inpatient reserves, our models use credibility weighting of lag-based
incurred claim estimates and trended per member per month estimates. For both the inpatient and non-inpatient reserves, lag-based estimates receive
little or no credibility weighting in the more current incurral months. Credibility factors are increased for older months within the lag models since those
older months have a higher completion factor and are the best indicator of qur ultimate cost.

Within the reserve setting methodologies for inpatient and non-inpatient services, there are certain assumptions that are used. For inpatient services,
authorized days are used for utilization factors, while cost trend assumptions are incorporated into per diem amounts. The per diem estimates reflect
anticipated effects of changes in reimbursement structure and severity mix. For non-inpatient servicas, a composite trend assumption is apptied which
reflects anticipated changes in cost per service, provider contracts, utilization, and other factors.

Actuarial standards of practice generally require the actuarial developed medical claims estimates to cover abligations under an assumption of moder-
ately adverse conditions. Adverse conditions are situations in which the actual claims are expected 10 be higher than the otherwise estimated value of
such claims. In many situations, the claims paid amount experienced will be less than the estimate that satisfies the actuarial standards of practice.




Medical claims liabilities are recorded at an amount we estimate ta be appropriate. Adjustments of prior years estimates may result in additional medical

costs or, as we have experienced during the last several years, a reduction in medical costs in the period an adjustment was made. Qur reserve madels. -

have historically developed favorably suggesting that the accrued liabilities calculated from the models were more than adequate to cover our ultimate
liability for unpaid claims. We believe that this favorable development is a result of good communications between our health plans and our actuarial
staff regarding medical utilization, mix of provider rates and other components of medical cost trend.

The foliowing table presents the components of the change in medical liabilities (Medical claims liabilities and Other medical liabilities) for the years
ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively (in thousands).

2003 2002 2001
Medical liabilities, Beginning of Period $ 558599 $ 522854 $ 444,887
Acguisitions 38,828 30,778 34,627
Reparted medical costs
Current year 3,693,821 2,985,472 2,679,337
Priar year (86,532) {65,973) (28,344)
Total reported medical costs $3,607,289 $2.919,499 $2,650,993
Claim payments
Payments for current year 3,235,902 2,527,999 2,259,523
Payments for prior year 371,624 386,533 348,130
Total claim payments $3,607,526 $2.914,532 $2,607,653
Medical liabilities, End of Period $ 597,190 $ 558,599 $ 522854

Acquisition balances represent medical ligbilities as of the applicable acquisition date. Subsequent changes in estimates related to the acquired bal-
ances are recorded as adjustments to the settlement account with the acquired entity's previcus owner.

The negative amounts noted as “prior year” medical costs are favorable adjustments for claim estimates being settled for amounts less than criginally
anticipated. As noted above, these favorable restatements from original estimates occur due to changes in medical utilization, mix of provider rates and
other components of medical cost trends.

We believe that the amount of medical liabilities is adequate to cover our ultimate liability for unpaid claims as of December 31, 2003; however, actual
claim payments and other items may differ from established estimates. Assuming a hypothetical 1% variance between our December 31, 2003 esti-
mates of medical liabilities and actual costs payable, net earnings for the year ended December 31, 2003, would increase or decrease by approximately
$3.8 million and diluted earnings per share would increase or decrease by approximately $0.04 per share.

Investments

We account for investments in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 115—"Accounting for Certain Investments
in Debt and Equity Securities.” We invest primarily in fixed income securities and classify all our investments as available-for-sale. Investments are
evaluated at least quarterly to determine if declines in value are other-than-temparary. In making that determination, we consider all available evidence
relating to the realizable value of a security. This evidence includes, but is not limited to, the following:

¢ adverse financial conditions of a specific issuer, segment, industry, region or other variables;

* the length of the time and the extent to which the fair value has been less than cast;

e the financial condition and near-term prospects of the issuer;

¢ our intent and ability to retain our investment in the issuer for a period of time sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery in fair value;
¢ elimination or reduction in dividend payments, or scheduled interest and principal;

 rating agency downgrade of a debt security; and

¢ expected cash flows of a debt security.

Temporary declines in value of investments classified as available-for-sale are netted with unrealized gains and reported as a net amount in a separate
component of stockholders’ equity. A decline in fair value below amortized cost that is judged to be other-than-temporary is accounted for as a realized
lass and the write-down is included in earnings. Realized gains and losses on the sale of investments are determined on a specific identification basis.



The following table shows our investments’ gross unrealized losses and fair value, at December 31, 2003, aggregated by investment categary and
length of time that individual securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss position {in thousands).

Less Than 12 Maonths 12 Months or More Total
Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized
Description of Securities Fair Value Loss Fair Value Loss Fair Value Loss
State and municipal bonds $ 57,425 $ (714) 3 — §— $ 57,425 $ (M4
U.S. Treasury & agency securities 28,372 (161} — — 28,372 (161)
Mortgage-backed securities 20,823 (391 3,278 (21} 24,193 (412}
Asset-backed securities — — — — — —
Corporate debt and other securities 147,708 {1,200} — — 147,709 (1.200)
$254,429 §(2,466) $3,270 821} $257,699 $(2,487)

The securities presented in this table do not meet the criteria for an other-than-temporarily impaired investment. These securities have an investment
grade credit rating. The current unrealized loss is the result of interest rate increases and not unfavorable changes in the credit ratings associated with
these securities. These investments are not in high risk industries or sectors and we intend to hold these investments for a period of time sufficient to
allow for a recovery in market value.

Investments with criginal maturities in excess of three months and less than one year are classified as short-term investments and generally consist of
corporate bonds, U.S. Treasury notes and commercial paper. Long-term investments have original maturities in excess of one year and primarily consist
of fixed income securities.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwil! and other intangible assets that have indefinite lives are subject to a periodic assessment for impairment by applying a fair-value-based test.
We use three approaches to identifying the fair value of our goodwill and other intangible assets: a market approach, a market capitalization approach
and an income approach. The market approach estimates a business's fair value by analyzing the recent sales of similar companies. The market capi-
talization approach is based on the market value of our total shares outstanding. The income approach is based on the presant value of expected future
cash flows. All three approaches are reviewed together for consistency and commonality. Any impairment charges that may result will be recorded in
the period in which the impairment took place. We have not incurred an impairment charge related to goodwill. See Note C to the consolidated finan-
cial statements for additional disclosure related to intangible assets.

New Accounting Standards

In December 2002, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”} issued SFAS Na. 148-—"Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation—Transition
and Disclosure” as an amendment to FASB statement No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation.” This statement provides alternative meth-
ods of transition to the fair value method of accounting for stock-based compensation and requires prominent disclosure in our footnotes to the finan-
cial statements of our interim and annual reports. Unless the accounting rules change, we currently do not expect to transition to the fair value method
of accounting for stock-based compensation, and, accordingly, this statement did not affect our financial pasition or results of operations.

In July 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 146—"Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities.” This statement addresses the finan-
cial accounting and reporting for costs associated with exit or disposal activities and nullifies Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF"} Issue No. 94-3,
“Liabitity Recognition for Certain Employee Termination Benefits and Other Costs to Exit an Activity (including Certain Costs Incurred in a
Restructuring),” and nullifies EITF Issue No. 88-10, "Cost Associated with Lease Modification or Termination.” SFAS No. 146 requires a liability for a
cost associated with an exit or disposal activity to be recognized and measured at fair value only when the liability is incurred. This statement did not
have a material impact on our financial position or results of operations.

In June 2001, the FASB issued two standards related to business combinations. The first statement, SFAS No. 141—"Business Combinations,” requires
all business combinations initiated after June 30, 2001 to be accounted for using the purchase mathod and prohibits the pocling-of-interest method of
accounting. SFAS No. 141 also states that acquired intangible assets should be separately recognized upon meeting certain criteria. Such intangible
assets incfude, but are not limited to, trade and service marks, non-compete agreements, customer lists and licenses. We were not significantly
affected by the implementation of this statement.

The second statement, SFAS No. 142—"Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” requires companies to cease amortization of goodwill. Rather, Qoodwilf
and other intangible assets that have indefinite lives will be subject to a periodic assessment for impairment by applying a fair-value-based test.




Impairment charges may result in future write-downs in the period in which the impairment took place. As required, we adopted SFAS No. 142 for the
fiscal year beginning January 1, 2002, and, accordingly, goodwill was not amortized during 2002 nor 2003. Refer to Note C of our consolidated financial
statements for more information.

In June 1998, the FASB issued SFAS No. 133—"Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities.” Effective January 1, 2001, we adopted
SFAS No. 133. Accordingly, a transition gain of $0.9 million, net of tax, was recorded in the first quarter of 2001 related to one financial investment
classified as derivative in nature. The adjustment was shown separately as a cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle.

Acquisitions

During the thres years ended December 31, 2003, we completed several business combinations and membership purchases. These business combina-
tions are all accounted for using the purchase method of accounting, and, accordingly, the operating results of each acquisition have been included in
our consolidated financial statements since their effective date of acquisition. The purchase price for each business combination was allocated to the
assets, including the identifiable intangible assets, and liabilities based on estimated fair values. The excess of the purchase price over the net identi-
fiable assets acquired was allocated to goodwill. Pricr to December 31, 2001, goodwill was amortized over a useful life of 35 years. In accordance with
SFAS No. 142, effective January 1, 2002, we no longer amortize goodwill. The purchase price of our membership purchases is allocated to identifiable
intangible assets and is being amortized over a useful life of five to twenty years.

The following table summarizes all business combinations and membership purchases for the three years ended December 31, 2003. The purchase
price, in thousands, of each business combination includes the payment for net worth and transition costs. Transition costs are initial estimates of
future expenses based on historical experience and known costs. These estimates may be adjusted as actual expenses are incurred, thereby affecting
the final purchase price of the acquisition. In addition, most of our acquisition agreements contain a provision for a final retroactive balance sheet set-
tlement which may result in adjustments to the purchase price. The purchase price shown for recent acquisitions, in thousands, is inclusive of all
retroactive balance sheet settlements to date and transaction cost adjustments.

Purchase
Effective Date Market Price
Business Combinations
Blue Ridge Health Alliance, Inc. ("Blue Ridge") September 1, 2001 Virginia $14,850
NewAiliance Health Plan, Inc. ("NewAlliance”) May 1, 2002 Pennsylvania $ 8,303
Mid-America Health Partners, Inc. (“Mid-America”) December 1, 2002 Kansas $41,260
PersonalCare Health Management, Inc. (“PersonalCare”) February 1, 2003 Hllinois $20,118
Altius Health Plans, Inc. (“Altius”) Septemberj, 2003 Utah $46,696
Membership Purchases
Health Partners of the Midwest (“Health Partners”) January 1, 2001 Missouri $ 4,863
Kaiser Foundation Health Plan of Kansas City, Inc. (“"Kaiser-KC") April 2, 2001 Kansas $ 6,498

Membership

The following table presents our membership as of December 31, 2003 and 2002 (rounded to the nearest thousand} and the percentage change in

membership between these dates.
December 31,

Percent
2003 2002 Change
Risk membership:
Commercial 1,510,000 1,283,000 17.7%
Medicare ’ 65,000 82,000 {20.7%)
Medicaid 324,000 275,000 17.8%
Total risk membership 1,899,000 1,640,000 15.8%
Nan-risk membership 484,000 395,000 22.5%
Total membership 2,383,000 2,035,000 17.1%
Network rental membership 678,000 788,000 {14.0%)



This increase in commercial risk membership is attributable to the acquisitions of Altius in the third quarter of 2003 and PersonalCare in the first quar-
ter of 2003, as well as continued organic growth. Medicare membership decreased as a result of the termination of the Mid-America Medicare Risk con-
tract as of January 1, 2003. Medicaid membership increased primarily as a result of an auto-assignment of additional members by the State of Missouri
due to the withdrawal of a compatitor in that market. Non-risk membership increased as a result of the Altius acquisition and from additional organic
membership obtained in our Missouri market. Overall organic membership growth, which excludes initial acquisitions and all changes to acquired enti-
ties during the first twelve months of operations, was approximately 7.7% and 2.8% for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Results of Operations

The following table (in thousands, except percentages and membership data) is provided to facilitate a more meaningful discussion regarding the com-
parison of our operations for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2003. On Becember 23, 2003, our Board of Directors approved
a three-for-two stock split of our common stock, effective January 30, 2004 for stockholders of record on January 9, 2004. The stock split is reflected
retroactively in per share data for all periods presented.

Increase Increase
2003 2002 (Decrease) 2002 2001 {Decrease)
Operating revenues:
Managed care premiums $4,442,445 $3,504,215 $938,230 $3,504,215 $3.082,825 $421,390
Management services 92,698 72,690 20,008 72,690 64,420 2270
Total operating revenuss $4,535,143 $3,576,905 $958,238 $3,576,905 $3,147,245 $429,660
Operating expenses: .
Medical costs $3,607,289 $2,919,499 $687,790 $2.919,499 $2,650,993 $268,506
Selling, general and administrative 543,478 437,851 105,627 437,851 379,234 58,617
Depreciation and amortization 18,179 18,885 (708) 18,885 25910 (7.025)
Total operating expenses $4,168,946 $3,376,235 $792,711 $3,376,235 $3,056,137 $320,098
Operating earnings 366,197 200,670 165,527 200,670 91,108 109,562
Net earnings $ 250,145 § 145803 $104,542 $ 145,603 § 84407 $ 61,196
Diluted earnings per share $§ 275 3 1.58 $ 117 $ 1.58 $§ 083 $ 075
Medical loss ratios:
Commercial 79.9% 82.8% (2.9%) 82.8% 85.9% (3.1%)
Medicare 83.8% 85.9% (2.1%) 85.9% 89.4% (3.5%)
Medicaid 87.5% 84.0% 35% 84.0% 83.5% 0.5%
Total 81.2% 83.3% (2.1%) 83.3% 86.0% (2.7%)
Administrative statistics:
Setling, general and administrative 12.0% 12.2% (0.2%) 12.2% 12.0% 02%
Days in medical claims liabilities 51.01 59.46 {8.45) 59.46 81.98 (2.52)
Days in other medical fiabilities 5.68 7.33 (1.69) 7.33 8.39 (1.08)
Membership at December 31:
Commercial 1,510,000 1,283,000 227,000 1,283,000 1,211,000 72,000
Medicare 65,000 82,000 {17,000 82,000 53,000 29,000
Medicaid 324,000 275,000 49,000 275,000 258,000 17,000
Non-risk 484,000 395,000 89,000 395,000 319,000 76,000
Total Membership 2,383,000 2,035,000 348,000 2,035,000 1,841,000 194,000
Netwaork rental membership 678,000 788,000 {110,000 788,000 730,000 58,000



Comparison of 2003 to 2002

Managed care premium revenue increased as a result of rate increases on renewals that occurred throughaut all markets, acquisitions and organic
membership growth. Rate increases on commercial risk renewals averaged 13.5% for the year 2003. Commercial yields increased by an average of
12.1% on a per member per month {“PMPM”) basis. Excluding the Altius acquisition, the commercia! yield increased 12.8%. Medicare yields increased
6.1% on a PMPM basis as a result of changes being made to rate structures, as well as changes in demographics. The acquisitions of Mid-America,
PersonalCare, and Altius resulted in an increase in managed care premium revenue of approximately $325 million. Grganic membership growth resulted
in an increase to managed care premiums of appraximately $265 mitlion.

Management services revenue increased due to the increase in non-risk membarship discussad earlier.

Medical costs have increased due to acquisitions, organic growth and medical trend. Our total medical loss ratio {medical costs as a percentage of
managed care premiums) for all products improved 2.1%. This favorable change was attributable mostly to our commercial business and is a result of
the commercial premium rate increases mentioned above outpacing commercial medical trend. Reported commercial medical trends, net of benefit buy
downs, have been below 10% for each of the last two years. Our Medicare business medical loss ratio improved as a result of an increase in premium
yields discussed above and exiting three counties in the Kansas City market on January 1, 2003. Our Medicaid medical loss ratio increased as a result
of changes in the geographical markets in which we operate, and an increase in membership in a capitated service. We exited the Delaware Medicaid
market on July 1, 2002. Within our Pennsylvania market, membership in our capitated Medicaid behavioral health program has increased significantly
during 2002 and 2003. This program has a high medical loss ratio, but is lower in risk to our Company. Our days in total medical claims ligbilities have
decreased 10.1 days from priar year due to faster claim receipts and pracessing cycle times as well as effarts to reduce claim inventaries.

Selling, general and administrative expense increased primarily due to increased costs associated with acquisitions, an increase in broker commissions
and an increase in salary expenses. Broker commissions, excluding acquisitions, have increased due to the growth in both organic membership and in
premium yields. Salary expenses, excluding acquisitions, have increased due to annual salary increases, additional amortization expense related to
restricted shares of common stock granted in 2003, additional management and sales incentive accruals and incremental salary expense related to our
organic membership growth. As a percentage of revenue, selling, general and administrative expense decreased by 0.2%.

Senior notes interest and amortization expense has increased in 2003. Due to the issuance of the notes on February 1, 2002, the prior year period rep-
resented eleven months of interest compared to twelve months in 2003. Also contributing to the increase is a $0.5 million loss on the repurchase of a
portion of our senior notes at a premium in the third quarter of 2003.

Other income increased due to a larger investment portfolio in 2003 offset by a decrease in interest income as a result of lower interest rates.
Additionally, the current year included a gain from our single derivative investment compared to a loss in the prior year. This derivative investment was
sold during the second quarter of 2003.

QOur provision for income taxes increased primarily due to an increase in earnings before taxes. The effective tax rate increased to 36.4% in 2003 from
35.5% in 2002

Comparison of 2002 to 2001

Managed care premium revenue increased in 2002 over 2001 primarily from commercial rate increases that occurred throughout both years and from
membership growth, both organically and through the previously discussed acquisitions. Commercial premium rates increased by an average of $20.75
over 2001 on a per member per month ("PMPM”) basis, to $183.80 PMPM.

Management services revenue increased in 2002 from 2007 as a result of acquisitions. In particular, the Health Partners, Blue Ridge, NewAlliance and
Mid-America acquisitions accounted for approximately 113,800 new non-risk members.

Medical costs increased in 2002 compared to 2001 due to membership growth, as discussed above and medical trend. Our commercial medical trend
for the vear ended 2002 was 8.6% and the average trend for the three year period ended December 31, 2002 was 10.1%. OQur medical oss ratio
improved in 2002 in our Commercial and Medicare product lines as a result of rate increases outpacing medical trends.

Selling, general and administrative expense increased in 2002 primarily due to acquisitions, an increase in fees paid to brokers and incremental salary
expense related to the expansion of our customer service organization. During 2002, we opened a new regional service center in Bismarck, North
Dakota to perform customer service functions related to the Mid-America acquisition and to create additional capacity for future acquisitions. As a per-
centage of revenue, selling general and administrative expense increased slightly by 0.2% to 12.2% for 2002.




Depreciation and amortization decreased compared to the prior year primarily due to the adoption of SFAS No. 142 in January 2002. In accordance with
SFAS No. 142, we no longer amortize goodwill but rather test for impairment at least once a year. In 2001, we amortized $7.5 million in goodwill. We
did not incur any impairment charges during 2002.

Senior notes interest and amortization expense were incurred in 2002 due to the issuance of our senior notes on February 1, 2002, as described below
in “Liquidity and Capital Resources.”

Other income, net decreased in 2002 from 2001 due primarily to the change in valuation of a derivative investment. We recorded a gain in 2001 and a
loss in 2002 related to this derivative. The decrease is also related to a decrease in the amaortization of discounts on investments, offset by an increase
in interest income due to cash placed in long-term investments to achieve higher yields.

Qur provision for income taxes increased in 2002 due to an increase in operating garnings, offset by a decrease in our effective tax rate from 38.0% in
2001 to 35.5% in 2002. This decrease in the tax rate is the result of strategic tax planning and due to the elimination of goodwill amartization in 2002.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Consolidated
Our total cash and investments, consisting of cash and cash equivalents and shart-term and long-term investments, but excluding deposits of $23.2 mil-
lion restricted under state regulations, increased $283.1 miliion to $1.4 billion at December 31, 2003 from $1.1 billion at December 31, 2002.

Net cash from operating activities for the year ended December 31, 2003 increased over the prior year due to an increase in net earnings, a decrease
in other receivables and an increase in deferred revenue. These are offset by an increase in the long-term deferred tax asset. Other receivables have
decreased due to accelerated collections of our pharmacy rebate receivables as a result of improved procedures implemented in 2003. Deferred rev-
enue has increased due 1o accelerated collections of premium billings as a result of operationa! efficiencies experienced at our regional service centers.

Net cash from investing activities for the year ended December 31, 2003 improved over the prior year primarily as a result of investment activity, offset
by an increased amount of payments for acquisitions. Capital expenditures for the year ended December 31, 2003 were only slightly above that of the
prior year. Projected capital investments in 2004 of approximately $16 million consist primarily of computer hardware, software and related equipment
costs associated with the development and implementation of improved operational and communication systems.

Net cash from financing activities for the year ended December 31, 2003 improved over the prior year as result of fewer repurchases of our common
stock in 2003. On February 1, 2002, we completed the purchase of 7.1 million shares of our commaon stock and a warrant exercisable, at that time, for
3.1 million shares of aur common stack, owned by Principal Health Care, Inc. The aggregate purchase price for the shares of common stock and the war-
rant was $176.7 million. The purchase of the shares and warrant from Principal ended their ownership of our common stock. We financed the stock and
warrant repurchase with the proceeds from the sale of $175.0 million of our 8.125% senior notes due February 15, 2012. Interest on the notes is
payable on February 15 and August 15 each year. As required under the terms of the senior notes, we made interest payments of $14.2 million and $7.7
million during the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. In addition to the repurchase of our common stock from Principal we made
repurchases or our common stock, as described below in “Share Repurchase Program,” at an aggregate cost of $65.5 million. In August 2003, we repur-
chased a portion of our senior notes with a face value of $4.5 million and a weighted average premium of 8.9%.

The senior notes contain certain covenants and restrictions regarding incurring additional debt, limiting dividends or other restricted payments, and
restricting transactions with affiliates, sales of assets and consolidations or mergers. We have complied with all covenants under the senior notes.

Net cash from operating activities for the year ended December 31, 2002 increased over 2001 due to an increase in net earnings and an increase in
accounts payable and other accrued liabilities. The latter was a result of increases in additional selling, general and administrative liabilities related to
our acquisitions and business growth throughout 20071 and 2002 and an increase in our dsferred tax liability. These increases were offset by a decrease
in total medical claims liabilities as a result of the timing of medical claims payments. Also, in 2001 we received 13 months worth of Medicare premium
payments as a result of the timing of CMS payments and only 12 months of premium payments were received during 2002 which led to the decrease
in our deferred revenue.

Our investment guidelines emphasize investment grade fixed income instruments in order to provide liquidity to meet future payment obligations and
minimize the risk of principal. The fixed income portfolio includes government and corporate securities with an average quality rating of “AA+" and an

average contractual duration of 3.1 years, as of December 31, 2003. We will continue to fund our working capital requirements from our cash flow fram -

operations. We believe that because our long-term investments are available-for-sale, the amount of such investments should be considered when
assessing our liguidity. On such basis, current assets plus fong-term investments available-for-sale less current liabilities increased to $730.5 million at
December 31, 2003 from $498.0 million at December 31, 2002.
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Health Plans
QOur regulated HMO and insurance company subsidiaries are required by state regulatory agencies to maintain minimum surplus balances, thereby limiting
the dividends the parent may receive from its regulated entities. During 2003, we collected $108.7 million in dividends from our regulated subsidiaries.

The National Asscciation of Insurance Commissioners {"NAIC") has proposed that states adopt risk-based capital ("RBC") standards that, if adopted,
generally reguire higher minimum capitalization requirements for HMOs and ather risk-hearing health care entities. RBC is a method of measuring the
minimum amount of capital deemad appropriate for 8 managed care organization to support its overall business operations with consideration for its
size and risk profile. This calculation, approved by the NAIC, incorporates asset risk, underwriting risk, credit risk and business risk components. The
Company’s health plans are required to submit an RBC report to the NAIC and their domiciled state's department of insurance with their annual filing.

The RBC results are used to determing if the health plan’s statutory net worth is adequate to support the amount of its calculated risk profile. Regulators
also use the RBC results to determing if any regulatory actions are required. Regulatory actions that could take place, if any, range from filing a financial
action plan explaining how the plan will increase its statutory net warth to the approved levels, to the health plan being placed under regulatory control.

The majority of states in which we operate health plans have adopted an RBC policy that recommends the health plans maintain statutory reserves at
or above the ‘Company Action Level” which is currently equal to 200% of their RBC. We have adopted an internal policy to maintain all of our regulated
subsidiaries’ statutory capital and surplus at or above 250% of their RBC. Some states in which our regulated subsidiaries operate, require deposits to
be maintained with the respective states’ departments of insurance. The table below summarizes our statutory reserve information, as of December 31,
2003 and 2002 (in millions except percentage data).

2003 2002
Capital and surplus $588.6 $4371
250% of RBC 3745 315.9
Excess capital and surplus above 250% of RBC 2141 121.2
Capital and surplus as a percentage of RBC 393% 346%
Statutory deposits 232 195

The increase in capital and surplus for our regulated subsidiaries is a result of income from 2003 and the acquisitions of PersonalCare and Altius, off-
set by dividends paid to the parent company. The increase in statutory deposits is mainly a result of the acquisitions of PersonalCare and Altius.

Excluding funds held by entities subject to regulation, we had cash and investments of approximately $209.5 million and $86.7 million at December 31,
2003 and December 31, 2002, respectively. The increase in non-regulated cash and investments is primarily a result of dividends received from sub-
sidiaries mentioned above and ordinary operating activities offset by payments for acquisitions. During the year ended December 31, 2003, we made
capital contributions of approximately $14.1 million to our HMO subsidiaries. This contribution was almost exclusively made to our recently acquired
Altius Health Plan in order to increase capital and surplus to appropriate levels.

Other

The United States Department of Health and Human Services has issued rules, as mandated by the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act
of 1996, which, among other things, impose security and privacy requirements with respect to individually identifiable patient data, including a mem-
ber's transactions with health care providers and payors, as well as requirements for the standardization of certain electronic transaction code sets and
provider identifiers. We have spent approximately $4.2 million, $4.1 millicn and $0.8 million on compliance matters for the years ended December 31,
2003, 2002 and 2007, respectively. We anticipate spending approximately $2.6 million in 2004, of which approximately $1.0 million will be capitalized,
related to improved functionality of our electronic transaction code sets, improved provider identifier standards, and improved security and patient
information privacy standards.

As of December 31, 2003, we were contractually obligated to make the following payments within the next five years and thereafter (in thousands):

Payments Due by Period

Less Than More Than
Contractual Obligations Total 1 Year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years 5 Years
Seniar notes $170,500° § — § — § — $170,500
Interest payable on senior notes 117,751 13,853 27,706 27,706 48,486
Operating leases 84,546 16,560 28,775 18,559 20,652
Total contractual obligations 372797 30,413 56,481 46,265 239,638
Less sublease income {10,506) (1,439) (2,351) {2,050} (4,666)
Net contractual obligations $362,291 $28,974 $54,130 $44,215 $234,972




Refer to Note /1o our consolidated financial statement for disclosure related to our operating leases.

The nature of our operations is such that cash receints from premium revenues are typically received up to two months prior to the expected cash payment
for related medical costs. The demand for our products and services are subject to many economic fluctuations, risks and uncertainties that could materially
affect the way we do business. Please refer to the section entitled “Risk Factors™ in this Form 10-K for mare information. Managsment believes that the com-
bination of our ability to generate cash flows from operations, cash and investments on hand and the excess funds held in certain of our regulated sub-
sidiaries will be sufficient to fund centinuing operations, capital expenditures, debt interest costs and any other reasonably likely future cash requirements.

Other Disclosures

‘Share Repurchase Program

Our Board of Directors has approved a program to repurchase up to 10% of our outstanding common stock. Stock repurchases may be made from time
to time at prevailing prices on the open market, by biack purchase or in private transactions. As a part of this program, we purchased 5.6 million shares
of our common stack from 1999 to 2002, which includes 3.3 million purchased in 2002 at an aggregate cost of $65.5 million. We did not purchase any
shares of our common stock in 2003 under this program.

Between January 1, 2004, and the date of this filing, under the share repurchase program previously approved by the Board of Directors, the Company
purchased 2.0 million shares of its common stock at an aggregate purchase price of $84.6 million. The remaining common shares the Company is
authorized ta repurchase under the program is appraximately 1.8 million.

Legal Proceedings

In the normal course of business, we have been named as a defendant in various legal actions such as actions seeking payments for claims denied by
the Company, medical malpractice actions, emplayment related claims and other various claims seeking monetary damages. The claims are in various
stages of proceedings and some may ultimately be brought to trial. Incidents occurring through December 31, 2003 may result in the assertion of addi-
tional claims. We maintain general liability, professional liability and employment practices liability insurances in amounts that we believe are appro-
priate, with varying deductibles for which we maintain reserves. The professional liability and employment practices liability insurances are carried
through our captive subsidiary.

Our captive subsidiary provides up to $5 million in professional liahility coverage for each single claim and up ta $10 million in coverage for each class
action claim. The captive professional liability policy has an aggregate limit of $20 million per year. The captive is also co-insured with a commercial
carrier for an additional $10 million for professional liability claims. Additionally, the captive employment practices liability policy provides up to
$250,000 per single claim, $10 million per class action claim, and an aggregate policy limit of $70 million. Each year we will re-evaluate the most cost-
effective methad for insuring these types of claims,

We are a defendant in the provider track in the Managed Care Litigation filed in the United States District Court for the Southern District of Florida,
Miami Division, MDL No. 1334, styled in re: Humana, Inc., Charfes B. Shane, MD, et al. vs. Humana, Inc., et al. This action was filed by a group of physi-
cians as a class action against us and twelve other companies in the managed care industry. In its fourth amended complaint, the plaintiffs have
alleged violations of RICG, conspiracy to violate RICO and aiding and abetting a scheme to violate RICO. in addition to these RICQO claims, the complaint
includes counts for breach of contract, violations of various state prompt payment laws and equitable claims for unjust enrichment and quantum meruit.
We have filed a motion to dismiss each of these claims bacause they fail to state a cause of action or, in the alternative, to compel arbitration pursuant
1o the arbitration provisions which exist in our physician contracts. In response to the motion to dismiss, the trial court dismissed several of the claims
and ordered that all physicians who have an arbitration provision in their provider contracts must submit all of their claims to arbitration. As a conse-
quence of this ruling, all the plaintiffs who have arbitration provisions voluntarily dismissed all of their arbitratable claims. The trial court excluded from
the scape of claims subject to arbitration, the plaintiffs’ claims of conspiracy, conspiracy to violate RICO and aiding and abetting violations of RICO. The
defendants, including the Company, have appealed the trial court’s decision to the 11th Circuit Court of Appeals. The appeal has been fully briefed and
the parties are awaiting a date for oral argument. The trial court has certified various subclasses of physicians; however, we are not subject to the class
certification order because the motion to certify was filed before we were joined as a defendant. The plaintiffs have now filed & motion to certify a
class as to the Company, and we have filed our oppaosition to that motion. The trial court has not yet issued a ruling on the motion. The defendants who
were subject to the certification order filed an appeal to the 11th Circuit which has been argued. The appeals court has not yet issued its decision.
Subseguent to this appeal, two companies have entered into settlement agreements with the plaintiffs. Both settlement agreements have been filed
with the Court and have received final approval. Although we can not predict the outcome, management believes that this lawsuit will not have a mate-
rial adverse effect on our financial position or our results of operations. Management also believes that the claims asserted in this lawsuit are without
merit, and we intend to defend our position.
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We may be the target of other similar lawsuits invalving RICO and ERISA, generally claiming that managed care companies overcharge consumers and mis-
represent that they deliver quality health care. Although we may be the target of other similar lawsuits, we beligve there is no valid basis for such lawsuits.

Our industry is heavily regulated and the laws and rules gaverning the industry and interpretations of those laws and rules are subject to frequent
change. Existing or future laws could have a significant effect an our operations.

Legislation and Regulation

As a managed health care company, we are subject to extensive government regulation of our products and services. The laws and regulations affect-
ing our industry generally give state and federal regulatory authorities broad discretion in their exercise of supervisory, regulatory and administrative
powers. These laws and regulations are intended primarily for the benefit of the members of the health plans. Managed care laws and regulations vary
significantly from jurisdiction to jurisdiction and changes are frequently considered and implemented.

Although the provisions of any legislation adopted at the state or federal level can not be accurately predicted at this time, management believes that
the ultimate outcome of currently proposed legistation would not have a material adverse effect on our results of operations in the short-term.

Qur industry is heavily regulated and the laws and rules governing the industry and interpretations of those laws and rules are subject to frequent
change. Existing or future laws could have significant effect on our operations.

Inflation

fn recent years, health care cost inflation has exceeded the general inflation rate. To reduce the effect of health care cost inflation on our business oper-
ations we have, where possible, increased premium rates and implemented cost control measures in our patient care management and provider con-
tracting. We can not be certain that we will be able to increase future premium rates at a rate that equals or exceeds the health care cost inflation rate
or that our other cost control measures will be effective.

2004 Outlook
As a result of a strong sales force, a broad product offering, a disciplined underwriting process and superior customer service, we have an organic
membership growth target of 3-5% for the year 2004.

We operate in highly competitive markets, but believe that the pricing environment is rational in our existing markets, thus creating the opportunity for
reasonable price increases. We will continue to obtain adequate premium increases and expect premium rates to continue to rise at a rate equal to or
greater than medical trend in 2004. Management believes that existing markets have potential for premium growth for our commercial and govern-
menta! products.

In 2004, we have received Medicare rate increases of 10.7%, which was 5.7% from the original Adjusted Community Rating filings and 5% additional
as a result of the Medicare Mademization Act passed in December 2003. The rate increases will not improve our profitability as the increases are for
enhanced member benefits and/or network access.

We currently anticipate reducing selling, general and administrative expenses as a percentage of revenue in 2004, excluding the effect of any future
acquisitians, through medical claims auto-adjudication, improved customer service, e-commerce initiatives, spending controls and fixed costs leverage.

Management believes that the foregoing should result in sarnings improvements in 2004, although realization is dependent upon a variety of factors,
some of which may be outside of our control.

Risk Factors

The risks described below are not the only ones that we face. Additional risks not presently known to us or that we currently deem immaterial may also
impair our business operations.

Our business, financial condition or results of operations could be materially adversely affected by any of these risks. Further, the trading price of our
common stock could decline due to any of these risks, and you may lose all or part of your investment.



Our results of dperations may be adversely affected if we are unable to accurately estimate and control future health care costs.

Most of the premium revenue we receive is based upon rates set months before we deliver services. As a result, our results of operations largely
depend on our ability to accurately estimate and control future health care costs. We base the premiums we charge, at [gast in part, on our estimate of
expected health care costs over the applicable premium period. Factors that may cause health care costs to exceed our estimates include:

* anincrease in the cost of health care services and supplies. including pharmaceuticals;
¢ higher than expected utilization of health care services;

¢ periodic renegotiations of hospital, physician and other provider contracts;

* the occurrence of epidemics and catastraphic events;

¢ changes in the demographics of cur members and medical trends affecting them;

¢ general inflation 6r economic downturns;

* new mandated benefits or other regulatory changes that increase our costs; and

¢ other unforeseen occurrences.

In addition, medical ¢laims payable in our financial statements include our estimated reserves for incurred but not reported and unpaid claims, which we
call IBNR. The estimates for submitted claims and IBNR are made on an accrual basis. We believe that our reserves for IBNR are adequate to satisfy our
medicat claims liabilities, but we can not assure you of this. Any adjustments to our IBNR reserves could adversely affect our results of operations.

Our results of operations will be adversely affected if we are unable to increase premiums to offset increases in our health care costs.

Our results of operations depend on our ability to increase premiums to offset increases in our health care costs. Although we attempt to base the premiums
we charge on our estimate of future health care costs, we may not be able to control the premiums we charge as a result of competition, government
reguiations and other factors. Our results of operations could be adversely affected if we are unable to set premium rates at appropriate levels or adjust
premium rates in the event our health care costs increase.

A reduction in the number of members in our health plans could adversely affect our results of operations.

A reduction in the number of members in our health plans could adversely affect our results of operations. Factors that could contribute to the loss of
membership include:

e reductions in the number of employers offering health care coverage;

¢ reductions in work foree by existing customers;

* increases in premiums or benefit changes;

¢ benefit changes or reductions in premiums by our competitors;

* our exit from a market or the termination of a health plan; and

* negative publicity and news coverage relating to our company or the managed health care industry genératly.

Our growth strategy is dependent in part upon our ability to acquirs additional health plans and successfully integrate those plans into our operations.

Part of our growth strategy is to grow through the acquisition of additional health plans. During the last several years, we have significantly increased
our membership through a number of acquisitions. We can not assure you that we will be able to continue to locate suitable acquisition candidates,
successfully integrate the plans we acquire and realize anticipated operational improvements and cost savings. The plans we acquire also may not
achieve our anticipated levels of profitability. Our future growth rate will be adversely affected if we are not able to successfully complete acquisitions.

Competition in our industry may limit our ability to attract new members or to increase or maintain our premjum rates, which would adversely affect
our results of operations.

We operate in a highly competitive environment that may affect our ability to attract new members and increase premium rates. We compete with
other health plans for members. We beligve the principal factors influencing the choice among health care options are:

¢ orice of benefits offered;

* location and choice of health care providers;
* quality of customer service;

e comprehensiveness of coverage offered;

® reputation for quality care,

* financial stability of the plan; and

e diversity of product offerings.
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We face competition from other managed care companies, hospitals, health care facilities and other health care providers that may have broader geo-
graphical coverage, more established reputations in our markets, greater market share, lower costs and greater financial and other resources. We also
may theoretically face increased rate competition from certain not-for-profit health insurance organizations that would potentially be required by state
regulation to reduce capital surpluses that have been excessive.

We depend on the services of non-exclusive independent agents and brokers to market our products to employers, and we can not assure you that they
will continue to market our products in the future.

We depend on the services of independent agents and brokers to market our managed care products and services, particularly to small employer group
members. We do not have long-term contracts with independent agents and brokers and they typically are not dedicated exclusively to us and fre-
quently market the health care products of our competitors. We face intense competition for the services and allegiance of independent agents and bro-
kers, and we can not assure you that agents and brokers will continue to market our products in a fair and consistent manner.

Our failure to obtain cost-effective agreements with a sufficient number of providers may result in higher medical costs and a decrease in our membership.

Our future results largely depend an our ability to enter into cost-effective agreements with hospitals, physicians and other health care providers. The
terms of those pravider contracts will have a material effect on our medical costs and our ability to control these costs. In addition, our ability to con-
tract successfully with a sufficiently large number of providers in a particular geographic market will impact the relative attractiveness of our managed
care products in those markets.

In some of our markets, there are large provider systems that have a major presence. Some of these large provider systems have operated their own
health plans in the past or may choose to do so in the future. These provider systems could adversely affect our product offerings and results of opera-
tions if they refuse to contract with us, place us at a competitive disadvantage or use their market position to negotiate contracts that are less favor-
able to us. Provider agreements are subject to periodic renewal and renegotiations. We can not assure you that these large provider systems will
continue to contract with us or that they will contract with us on terms that are favorable to us.

Negative publicity regarding the managed health care industry generally or our company in particular could adversely affect our results of aperations.

Over the last several years, the managed health care industry has been subject to negative publicity. Negative publicity regarding the managed health
care industry generally or our company in particular may result in increased regulation and legislative review of industry practices, such as the Patients’
Bill of Rights legislation in 2001, which may further increase our costs of doing business and adversely affect our results of operations by:

e requiring us to change our products and services;
e increasing the regulatory burdens under which we operate; or
» adversely affecting our ability to market our products or services.

Negative publicity relating to our company or the managed care industry generally also may adversely affect our ability to attract and retain members.
A failure of our information systems could adversely affect our business.

We depend on our information systems for timely and accurate information. Failure to maintain effective and efficient information systems or disrup-
tions in our information systems could cause disruptions in our business operatians, loss of existing customers, difficulty in attracting new customers,
disputes with customers and providers, regulatory problems, increases in administrative expenses and other adverse consequences.

Compliance with privacy laws could adversely affect our business and results of operations.

The use of patient data by all of our businesses is regulated at the federal, state and lacal level. The Health insurance Portability and Accountability Act
of 1896, for example, imposed significant new requirements relating to maintaining the privacy of medical information. Various agencies of the federal
government have issued regulations to implement certain sections of this Act. The law is far-reaching and complex and proper interpretation and prac-
tice under the law continues to evolve. Consequently, our efforts to measure, monitor and adjust our business practices to comply with the law are
ongoing. Because these regulations and other similar federal, state and local laws and regulations continue to evolve, we can not guarantee that the
costs of compliance will not adversely affect our results of operations or cause us to change our operations significantly.



We conduct business in a heavily regulated industry and changes in laws or regulations or violations of regulations could adversely affect our business
and results of operations.

Our business is heavily regulated by federal, state and local authorities. Legislation or cther regulatory reform that increases the regulatory require-
ments imposed on us or that changes the way we currently do business may in the future adversely affect our business and results of operations.
Legislative or regulatory changes that could significantly harm us and our subsidiaries include changes that:

* impose increased liability for adverse consequences of medical decisions;

* [imit premium levels;

* increase minimum capital, reserves and other financial viability requirements;

* impose fines or other penalties for the failure to pay claims promptly;

¢ impose fines or other penalties as a result of market conduct reviews;

¢ prohibit or limit rental access to health care pravider networks;

» prohibit or limit provider financial incentives and provider risk-sharing arrangements,

* require health plans to offer expanded or new benefits;

* |imit the ability of health plans to manage care and utilization due to “any willing provider” and direct access laws that restrict or prohibit product
features that encourage members to seek services from contracted providers or through referral by a primary care provider;

 limit contractual terms with providers, including audit, payment and termination provisions; and

e implement mandatory third party review processes for coverage denials.

In addition, we are required to obtain and maintain various regulatory approvals to market many of our products. Delays in obtaining or failure to obtain
or maintain these approvals could adversely impact our results of operations. Federal, state and local authorities frequently consider changes to laws
and regulations that could adversely affect our business. We can not predict the changes that government authorities will approve in the future or
assure you that those changes will not have an adverse effect on our business or results of operations.

We face periodic reviews, audits and investigations under our contracts with federal and state government agencies, and these audits could have
adverse findings that may negatively impact our business.

We contract with various federal and state governmental agencies to provide managed health care services. Pursuant to these contracts, we are sub-
ject to varicus governmental reviews, audits and investigations to verify our compliance with the contracts and applicable laws and regulations. Any
adverse review, audit or investigation could result in:

¢ refunding of amounts we have been paid pursuant to our government contracts;

e imposition of fines, penalties and other sanctions on us;

* |oss of our right to participate in various federal programs;

e damage to our reputation in various markets;

¢ increased difficulty in selling our products and services; and

* loss of one or more of our ticenses to act as an insurer or HMO or to otherwise provide a service.

We are subject to litigation in the ordinary course of our business, including litigation based on new or evolving legal theories, that could significantly
affect our results of operations.

Due to the nature of our business, we are subject to a variety of legal actions relating to our business operations including claims relating to:

¢ our denial of non-covered benefits;

* vicarious lability for our actions or medical malpractice claims;

e disputes with our providers over alleged viclations of RICO;

s disputes with our providers over compensation and termination of provider contracts;

e disputes related to our non-risk business, including actions alleging breach of fiduciary duties, claim administration errors and failure to disclose net-
work rate discounts and other fee and rebate arrangements;

« disputes over our co-payment calculations;

e customer audits of our compliance with our plan obligations; and

e disputes over payments for out-of-network benefits.

In addition, plaintiffs continue to bring new types of purported legal claims against managed care companies. Recent court decisions and legislative
activity increase our exposure to these types of claims. In some casas, plaintiffs may seek class action status and substantial economic, non-economic
or punitive damages. The loss of even one of these claims, if it resulted in a significant damage award, could have a significant adverse effect on our
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financial condition or results of operations. In the event that a significant damage award does occur it may make reasonable settlements of claims more
difficult to obtain. We can not determine with any certainty what new theories of recovery may evolve or what their impact may be on the managed
care industry in general or on us in particular.

We have, and expect to maintain, liahility insurance coverage for some of the potential legal liabilities we may incur. Currently, the professional liabil-
ity and employment practices liability insurance is covered through our captive subsidiary. Potential liabilities that we incur may not, however, be cov-
ered by insurance, our insurers may dispute coverage, our insurers may be unable to meet their obligations or the amount of our insurance coverage
may be inadequate. We can not assure you that we will be able to obtain insurance coverage in the future, or that insurance will continue to be avail-
able on a cost-effective hasis, if at all.

Our stack price and trading volume may be volatile.

From time to time, the price and trading volume of our comman stock, as well as the stack of other companies in the health care industry may experience
periods of significant volatility. Company-specific issues and developments generally in the health care industry {including the regulatory environment) and
the capital markets may cause this volatility. Our stock price and trading volume may fluctuate in response to a number of events and factors, including:

e quarterly variations in our operating results;

¢ changes in the market's expectations about our future operating results;

* changes in financial estimates and recommendations by securities analysts concerning cur company or the health care industry generally;

¢ pperating and stock price performance of other companies that investars may deem comparable;

® news reports relating to trends in our markets;

* changes in the laws and regulations affecting our business;

® acquisitions and financings by us or others in our industry; and

¢ sales of substantial amounts of our common stock by our directors and executive officers or principal stockhalders, or the perception that such sales
could occur,

Our indebtedness will impose restrictions on our business and operations.

The indenture for aur senior notes, which were issued on February 1, 2002, imposes restrictions on our business and operations. These restrictions limit
our ability to, amang other things:

 incur additional debt;

* pay dividends or make other restricted payments;

® create or permit certain liens on our assets;

¢ sell assets;

e create or permit restrictions on the ability of certain of our restricted subsidiaries to pay dividends or make other distributions to us;
* enter into transactions with affiliates;

 enter into sale and leaseback transacticns; and

¢ consclidate or merge with or into other companies or sell all or substantially all of our assets.

In addition, we may incur additional indebtedness in the future, which may impose further restrictions on us. The restrictions in the indenture for our
senior notes and in any future debt instruments could limit, among other things, our ability to finance our future operations or capital needs, make
acquisitions or pursue available business oppartunities.

We may not be able to satisfy our obligations to holders of the senior notes upon a change of control.

in the event of a change of control of our company, we will be required, subject to certain conditions, to offer to purchase all of our outstanding senior
notes at a price equal to 101% of the principal amount thersaf, plus accrued and unpaid interest thereon to the date of purchase. [t is possible that we
will not have sufficient funds at the time of the change of contro! to make the required repurchase of the senior notes or that restrictions in any other debt
instruments may not allow such repurchases. Qur failure to purchase the senior notes would be a default under the indenture governing the senior notes.

Even if we are able to repurchase the senior notes in the event of a change of control, the use of our cash resources to complete the repurchase may
have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations.




Our stackholder rights plan, certificate of incorporation and bylaws and Delaware law could delay, discourage or prevent a change in control of our
company that our stockholders consider favorable. )

We have a stockholder rights plan that may have the effect of discouraging unsclicited takeover proposals. The rights issued under the stockholder
rights plan would cause substantial difution to a person or group that attempts to acquire us on terms not approved in advance by our board of direc-
tors. In addition, provisions in our certificate of incorporation and bylaws and Delaware law may delay, discourage or prevent a merger, acquisition or
change in control involving our company that our stockhalders may consider favorable. These provisions could also discourage proxy contests and make
it more difficult for stockholders to efect directors and take other corporate actions. Among ather things, these provisions:

® authorize us to issue preferred stock, the terms of which may be determined at the sole discretion of our board of directors and may adversely affect
the voting or economic rights of our common stockholders;

e provide for a classified board of directors with staggered three-year terms so that no mare than one-third of our directors can be replaced at any
annual meeting;

e provide that directors may be removed without cause only hy the affirmative vote of the holders of two-thirds of our outstanding shares;

¢ provide that any amendment or repeal of the provisions of our certificate of incarparation establishing our classified board of directors must be
approved by the affirmative vote of the holders of three-fourths of our outstanding shares; and

¢ gstablish advance notice requirements for nominations for election to the board of directors or for proposing matters that can be acted on by stock-
holders at a meeting.

These provisions of our stockholder rights plan, certificate of incorporation and bylaws and Delaware law may discourage transactions that otherwise
could provide for the payment of a premium over pravailing market prices for our common stock and also could limit the price that investors are willing
to pay in the future for shares of our common stock.

Effects of terrorism.

There can be no assurance that the war on terrorism, the threat of future acts of terrorism or the related concerns of members or providers will not
adversely affect our health care costs and our ability to pradict and control such costs. Future acts of terrorism and bio-terrorism could adversely affect
us through, among other things:

¢ increased utilization of health care services including, without limitation, hospital and physician services, ancillary testing and procedures, vaccina-
tions, prescriptions for drugs, mental health services and other services;

* loss of membership as the result of lay-offs or other in force reductions of employment;

e adverse effects upon the financial condition or husiness of employers who sponsor health care coverage for their employees;

* disruption of our business or operations; and

 disruption of the financial and insurance markets in general.

General economic conditions.

Changes in econamic conditions could affect our business and results of operations. The state of the economy could affect cur employer group renewal
prospects and our ability to collect or increase premiums. The state of the economy has also affected the states’ budgets, which could result in the
states attempting to reduce payments to Mediczid plans in those states in which we offer Medicaid plans, and increase taxes and assessments on our
activities. Although we could attempt to mitigate or cover our exposure from such increased costs through, among other things, increases in premiums,
there can be no assurance that we will be able to mitigate or cover all of such costs resulting from any budget cuts in states in which we operate.
Although we have attempted to diversify our product offerings to address the changing needs of our membership, there can be no assurance that the
effects of economic conditions will not cause our existing membership to seek health coverage alternatives that we do not offer or will not result in sig-
nificant membership loss, lower average premium yields or decreased margins on continuing membership.

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures of Market Risk

Under an investment policy approved by our Board of Directors, we invest primarily in marketable U.S. government and agency, state, municipal, mortgage-
backed and asset-backed securities and corporate debt obligations that are investment grade. The investment policy specifically prohibits investments
in any equities or in fixed income securities that are below investment grade. We have classified all of our investments as available-for-sale. We are
exposed to certain market risks including interest rate risk and credit risk.
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We have established policies and procedures to manage our exposure to changes in the fair value of our investments. Our policies include an empha-
sis on credit quality and the management of our portfolio’s duration and mix of securities. We believe our investment portfolio is diversified and cur-
rently expect no material loss to resuit from the failure to perform by the issuers of the debt securities we hold. The mortgage-backed securities are
insured by several associations, including Government National Mortgage Administration, Federal National Mortgage Administration and the Federal
Home Loan Martgage Corporation,

We invest primarily in fixed income securities and classify all our investments as available-for-sale. Investments are evaluated at least quarterly to
determine if declines in value are other-than-temporary. In making that determination, we consider all available evidence relfating to the realizable value
of a security. This evidence includes, but is not limited to, the following:

¢ adverse financial conditions of a specific issuer, segment, industry, region or other variables;

¢ the length of the time and the extent to which the fair value has been less than cost;

¢ the financial condition and near-term prospects of the issuer;

¢ our intent and ability to retain our investment in the issuer for a period of time sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery in fair value;
¢ glimination or reduction in dividend payments, or scheduled interest and principal;

* rating agency downgrade of a debt security; and

» expected cash flows of a debt security,

Temporary declines in value of investments classified as available-for-sale are netted with unrealized gains and repcrted as a net amount in a separate.
component of stockholders’ equity. A decline in fair value below amortized cost that is judged to be other-than-temporary is accounted for as a realized
loss and the write-down is included in earnings. Realized gains and losses on the sale of investments are determined on a specific identification basis.
See Note E to our consolidated financial statements in this Form 10-K for more information concerning other-than-temporary impaired investments.

Our investments at December 31, 2003 mature according to their contractual terms, as follows, in thousands {actual maturities may differ because of
call or prepayment rights):

Amortized Fair
Cost Value

As of December 31, 2003

Maturities:

Within 1 year $ 234,553 $ 236,036
110 5 years 554,629 570,671
510 10 years 312,224 323,040
Over 10 years 221 22,844
Tota! short-term and long-term securities $1.123517 $1,152,59

Our projections of hypothetical net losses in fair value of our market rate sensitive instruments, should potential changes in market rates occur, are pre-
sented below. The projection is based on & model, which incorporates effective duration, convexity and price to forecast hypothetical instantaneous
changes in interest rates of pasitive and negative 100, 200 and 300 basis points. The model only takes into account the fixed income securities in the
portfolio and excludes all cash. While we believe that the potential market rate change is reasonably possibie, actual results may differ.

Increase (decrease) in fair value of portfalio
given an interest rate (decrease} increase of X hasis points
As of December 31, 2003
{in thousands)

(300) (200) (100} 100 200 300

$116.162 $75,889 $37,507 (37,050} $(73.252) $(108,046)




FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
REPORT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

To the Board of Directers
0f Coventry Health Care, inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Coventry Health Care, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2003 and 2002, and
the related consolidated statements of aperations, shareholders” equity, and cash flows for the years then ended. Our audits also included the financial
statement schedule listed in the Index at ftem 15(a). These financial statements and schedule are the responsibility of tbe Company's management. Qur
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. The financial statements and schedule of Coventry Health
Care, Inc. and subsidiaries for the year ended December 31, 2001 were audited by other auditors who have ceased operations and whose report dated
February 1, 2002 expressed an unqualifisd opinion on those statements and schedule before the restatement disclosures described in Note C.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States. Those standards reguire that we plan and per-
form the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining,
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting princi-
ples used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audits provide a reascnable basis for our apinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of Coventry Health
Care, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2003 and 2002, and the consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for the years then
ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. Alsg, in our opinion, the related financial statement schedule,
when considered in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein.

As discussed in Note Cto the consolidated financial statements, effective January 1, 2002, Coventry Health Care, Inc., changad its method of account-
ing for goodwill and other intangible assets.

As discussed above, the consolidated financial statements of Coventry Health Care, Inc. as of December 31, 2001, and for the year ended December 31,
2001 were audited by other auditors who have ceased operations. As described in Note C, these consolidated financial statements have been revised
to include the transitional disclosures required by Statement of Financial Accounting Standards {Statement) No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible
Assets, which was adopted by the Company as of January 1, 2002. Qur audit procedures with respect to the disclosures in Note C with respect ta 2001
included (a) agreeing the previousty reparted net earnings to the previously issued financial statements and the adjustments to reported net earnings
representing amortization expense recognized in those periods related to goodwill to the Company’s underlying records obtained from management,
and (b) testing the mathematical accuracy of the reconciliation of adjusted net earnings to reported net earnings, and the related earnings per share
amounts. In our opinion, the disclosures for 2001 in Note C are appropriate. However, we were not engaged to audit, review, or apply any procedures
to the 2001 financial statements of the Company other than with respect to such disclosures and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or any
other form of assurance on the 2001 consolidated financial statements taken as a whale.

Sanit + LLP

Baltimore, Maryland
January 28, 2004
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

The following report is a copy of a report previously issued by Arthur Andersen LLP (“Andersen”), which has not been reissued by
Andersen. Certain financial information for the year ended December 31, 2001 was not reviewed by Andersen and includes additional
disclosures to conform with new accounting pronouncements and SEC rules and regulations issued during the fiscal year 2002.

To the Board of Directors
0f Coventry Health Care, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Coventry Health Care, Inc. (a Delaware corparation) and subsidiaries as of
December 31, 2001 and 2000, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the three years in
the period ended December 31, 2007. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express
an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States. Those standards require that we plan and per-
form the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining,
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting princi-
ples used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Coventry Health Care, Inc. and
subsidiaries as of December 31, 2001 and 2000, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2001 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.

/41—'7%#\ h dirasn LA LP

Baltimore, Maryland
February 1, 2002




COVENTRY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

{in thousands, except share data)

December 31,
2003 2002
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 253,331 $ 186,768
Short-term investments 101,191 57,895
Accounts receivable, net of allowance of $1,373 and $2,885
as of December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively 89,766 71,044
Other receivables, net 45,335 63,943
Deferred income taxes 36,255 36,861
QOther current assets 8,089 71,764
Total current asssts 533,967 424,275
Long-term investments 1,051,400 874,457
Property and equipment, net 33,085 34,045
Goodwill 281,183 243,748
Other intangible assets, net 27,497 25,687
Other long-term assets 54,654 41,230
Total assets $1,981,736 $1,643.440
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Current liabilities:
Medical claims liabilities $ 537,340 $ 497318
Other medical liabilities 59,850 61,281
Accaunts payable and ather accrued liabilities 183,781 178,577
Deferred revenue 73,909 63,536
Total current liabilities 854,880 800,712
Senior notes 170,500 175,000
Other long-term liabilities 27,358 21,69
Total liabilities 1,052,738 997,403
Stockholders' equity:
Common stock, $.01 par value; 200,000,000 shares authorized; 104,797,091 shares issued
and 90,571,189 outstanding in 2003; and 102,727,053 shares issued and 88,182,445 outstanding in 2002 1,048 1,027
Treasury stock, at cost, 14,225,902 and 14,544,608 shares in 2003 and 2002, respectively (204,274) {205,644)
Additional paid-in capital 565,734 529,980
Accumulated other comprehensive income 17,838 22,167
Retained earnings 548,652 298,507
Total stackholders’ equity 928,998 646,037
Total liabilities and stockholders” equity $1,981,736 $1,643,440

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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COVENTRY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND

(in thousands, except per share data)

SuBSIDIARIES CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Years Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001
Operating revenues:
Managed care premiums $4,442,445 $3,504,215 $3,082,825
Management services 92,698 72,690 64,420
Total operating revenues 4,535,143 3,576,905 3,147,245
Operating expenses:
Medical costs 3,607,289 2,919,499 2,650,993
Selling, general and administrative 543,478 437 851 379,234
Depreciation and amortization 18,179 18,885 25810
Total operating expenses 4,168,946 3,376,235 3,056,137
Operating earnings 366,197 200,670 91,108
Senior notes interest and amortization expense 15,051 13,446 —
(Other income, net 41,918 38,517 43,574
Earnings before income taxes 393,064 225,747 134,682
Provision for income taxes 142,919 80,138 51,153
Cumulative effect of change in accounting
principle—SFAS No. 133, net of tax effect of $561 — — 878
Net earnings $ 250,145 $ 145,603 $ 84407
Net earnings per share:
Basic before cumulative effect—SFAS No. 133 $ 28 $ 1.64 $ 0.86
Cumulative effect—SFAS No. 133 — — 0.01
Basic EPS $ 284 $ 1.64 $ 0.87
Diluted before cumulative effect—SFAS No. 133 $ 275 $ 158 $ 0.82
Cumulative effect—SFAS No. 133 — — 0.0
Diluted EPS $ 2.75 $ 1.58 $ 0.83

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.



CoVENTRY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Years Ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001

(in thousands)

Accumulated
Treasury  Additional Other Total
Commen  Stock, at Paid-In  Comprehensive  Retained  Stockholders’
Stock Cost Capital Income  Earnings Equity
Balance, December 31, 2000 § 994 § (10,810 $538,473 $ 3278 $ 68,497 $600,430
Comprehensive income:
Net earnings 84,407 84,407
Other comprehensive income:
Holding gain, net 7,522
Reclassification adjustment (470)
Cumulative effect—SFAS No. 133 (1,439)
5,613
Deferred tax effect (2,189) {2,189)
Comprehensive income 87,831
Issuance {purchase} of common stack,
including exercise of options and warrants 8 {1,447} 676 {783)
Tax benefit of stock awards 1,581 1,581
Balance, December 31, 2001 1,002 {12,257) 540,730 8,700 152,904 689,079
Comprehensive income:
Net earnings 145,603 145,603
Other comprehensive income:
Holding gain, net 22,777
Reclassification adjustment 1,203
23,980
Deferred tax effect (8,513} (8,513}
Comprehensive income 161,070
Issuance (purchase) of common stock,
including exercise of options and warrants 25 {52,317) 9,045 (43,247}
Purchase of shares and warrant from Principal (141,070) (35,000) (176,070}
Tax benefit of stock awards 15,205 15,205
Balance, December 31, 2002 1,027 {205,644} 529,980 22,167 298,507 646,037
Comprehensive income:
Net earnings 250,145 250,145
Other comprehensive income:
Holding loss, net (5,199)
Reclassification adjustment (95)
(5,294)
Deferred tax effect 965 965
Comprehensive income 245,816
Issuance of common stack, including
exercise of options and warrants 21 1,370 17,221 18,612
Tax benefit of stock awards 18,533 18,533
Balance, December 31, 2003 $ 1048  $(204,274) $ 565,734 $17,838 $548,652 $928,998

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.

35



COVENTRY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

{in thousands)

Years Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net earnings $ 250,145 $ 145,603 $ 84,407
Adjustments to reconcile net eamings to cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 18179 18,885 25,910
Amortization of deferred compensation 9,565 5,667 1,529
Deferred income tax provision 8,909 2,146 1,565
Amortization of deferred financing costs 542 412 —
Amortization of investment premiums {discounts) 8,971 4,438 (563)
Other 417 5,048 3,644
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of effects of the purchase of subsidiaries:
Accounts receivable (14,039) (3,017} (4,109)
Other receivables 24,427 6,054 4,429
Other current assets (90) {595) (225)
Other long-term assets (8,779) 660 {35)
Medical claims liabilities 1,317 4,862 57,859
Other medical liabilities (2,018) {458) {13,988)
Accounts payable and other accrued liabilities 20,072 17,003 2.551
Interest payable on senior notes {139) 5,372 —
Deferred revenue 5,638 (6,084) 18,636
Other long-term liabilities 99 2,789 (38)
Net cash from operating activities 323,116 208,765 181,572
Cash flows from investing activities:
Capital expenditures, net (13,372) {13,033 (11,871)
Proceeads from sales of investments 391,41 250,322 53,538
Proceeds from maturities of investments 108,231 322,436 382111
Purchases of investments and other (686,428) (793,851) (571,278)
Payments for acquisitions, net (74,922) (55,644) {20,256)
Cash acquired in conjunction with acquisitions 14,367 14770 48,997
Net cash from investing activities (260,683) (275,000} (118,759)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Net proceeds from issuance of stock 15,095 11,984 2,292
Net payments for repurchase of stock and warrant (6,049) (241,845) (8,970)
Proceeds from issuance of senior notes, net — 170,500 —
Payments for repurchase of senior notes (4,916) — —
Net cash from financing activities 4130 (59,361) (6,678)
Net change in cash and cash equivalents 66,563 {125,596) 56,135
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 186,768 312,364 256,229
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 253,331 $ 186,768 $ 312,364
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Cash paid for interest $ 14212 $ 7.662 $ —
Income taxes paid, net $ 101,682 $ 65,582 $ 35851
Non-cash item—Restricted stock $ 14,724 $ 15110 $§ 9,09
Nan-cash item—Tax benefit of stock awards $ 18533 $ 15205 $ 1581

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.



COVENTRY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001

A. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Coventry Health Care, Inc. {together with its subsidiaries, the "Company” or Coventry) is @ managed health care company operating heatth plans under
the names Altius Health Plans, Carelink Health Plans, Coventry Health Care, Coventry Health and Life, Group Health Plan, HealthAmerica,
HealthAssurance, HealthCare USA, PersonalCare, SouthCare, Southern Health and WellPath. The Company provides a full range of managed care prod-
ucts and services including health maintenance organization {"HMQ"), preferred provider organization {"PPO"} and point of sérvice ("POS") products.
The Company also administers self-insured plans for large employer groups and rents its provider netwarks to various third parties.

Since the Company began operations in 1987 with the acquisition of the American Service Companies entities, including Coventry Health and Life
Insurance Company (“CH&L"}, the Company has grown substantially through acquisitions. The table below lists all of the Company’s acquisitions. See
Note B to consolidated financial statements for additional information on the most recent acquisitions.

Acquisition Markets Type of Business Year Acquired
American Service Company {"ASC") entities Multiple Markets Multiple Products 1987
HealthAmerica Pennsylvania, Inc. (“"HAPA”) Pennsylvania HMO . 1988
Group Health Plan, inc. ("GHP") Missouri HMO 1990
Southern Health Services, inc. (“SHS”) Virginia HMO 1994
HealthCare USA, Inc. {"HCUSA") Multiple Markets Medicaid 1985
Principal Health Care, Inc. (“PHC"} Multiple Markets HMQO 1998
Carelink Health Plans {“Carelink”} West Virginia HMO 1999
Kaiser Foundation Heaith Plan of North Carolina {“Kaiser-NC") North Carolina HMO 1999
Prime0NE, Inc. {"PrimeONE"} West Virginia HMO 2000
Maxicare Louisiana, Inc. {"Maxicare”) Louisiana HMQ 2000
WellPath Community Health Plans (“\WeliPath”) North Carolina HMO 2000
Prudential Health Care Plan, Inc. ("Prudential "} Missouri Medicaid 2000
Blue Ridge Health Alliance, Inc. {“Blue Ridge") Virginia HMO 2001
Health Partners of the Midwest (“Health Partners”) Missouri HMO 2001
Kaiser Foundation Health Plan of Kansas City, Inc. (“Kaiser-KC") Kansas HMO 2001
NewAlliance Health Plan, Inc. {"NewAlliance"} Pennsylvania HMO 2002
Mid-America Health Partners, Inc. ("Mid-America”) Kansas HMO 2002
PersonalCare Health Management, Inc. (“PersonalCare”} tinais HMO 2003
Altius Health Plans, Inc. (“Altius”) Utah HMO 2003

Significant Accounting Policies
Principles of Consolidation—The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries, all of which are 100%
owned. All significant inter-company transactions have been eliminated.

Use of Estimates—The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States requires manage-
ment to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date
of the financiat statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those amounts.

Reclassifications—Certain 2002 and 2001 amounts have heen reclassified to conform to the 2003 presentation.

Stock Split—0On December 23, 2003, the Company's Board of Directors approved a three-for-two stock split of the Company’s commaon stock. The stock
split, in.the form.of a stock dividend, was distributed January 30, 2004 for stockholders of recard on January 8, 2004. The stock split is reflected retroac-
tively'in the-Company's consolidated financial statements and notes thereto for ail periods presented:

Significant Customers—The Company's commercial business is diversified across a large customer base and there are no commercial groups that make
up 10% or more of managed care premiums. For the years ended 2003, 2002 and 2001, the Company received 10.8%, 12.3% and 11.4%, respectively,
of its managed care premiums from the Federal Medicare+Choice program throughout its various markets. The Company also received 11.8%, 13.1%
and 12.4% of its managed care premiums in 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively, from its state-spansored Medicaid programs throughout its various
markets. In 2003, the State of Missouri accounted for over half of the Company’s Medicaid membership.
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Cash and Cash Fquivalents—Cash and cash equivalents consist principally of money market funds, commercial paper and certificates of deposit. The
Company considers all highly liquid securities purchased with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. The carrying amounts
of cash and cash equivalents reparted in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets approximate fair value.

Investments—The Company accounts for investments in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards {“SFAS”) No. 115—
“Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities,” issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board {"FASB"). The Company invests
primarily in fixed income securities and classifies all its investments as available-for-sale. Investments are evaluated at least quarterly to determine if
declines in value are other-than-temporary. In making that determination, the Company considers all available evidence relating to the realizable value
of a security. This evidence includes, but is not limited to, the following:

e adverse financial conditions of a specific issuer, segment, industry, region or other variables;

* the length of the time and the extent to which the fair value has been less than cost;

¢ the financial condition and near-term prospects of the issuer;

¢ the Company's intent and ability to retain its investment in the issuer for a period of time sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery in fair value;
* elimination or reduction in dividend payments, or scheduled interest and principal;

* rating agency downgrade of a debt security; and

¢ expected cash flows of a debt security.

Temporary declines in value of investments classified as available-for-sale are netted with unrealized gains and reported as a net amount in a separate
component of stackholders’ equity. A decline in fair value below amortized cost that is judged to be other-than-temporary is accounted for as a realized
loss and the write-down is included in earnings. Rezlized gains and losses on the sale of investments are determined on a specific identification basis.

Investments with original maturities in excess of three months and less than one year are classified as short-term investments and generally consist of
corporate bonds, U.S. Treasury notes and commercial paper. Long-term investments have original maturities in excess of one year and primarily consist
of fixed income securities.

Derivative Investment—In June 1998, the FASB issued SFAS No. 133—"Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities.” Effective
January 1, 2001, the Company adopted SFAS No. 133. Accordingly, a transition gain of $0.9 million, net of tax, was recorded in the first quarter of 2001
related to one financial investment classified as derivative in nature. The adjustment is shown separately as a cumulative effect of a change in account-
ing principle. The derivative investment was sold during the second quarter of 2003 and a gain of $0.8 million was recorded as other income, net in the
consolidated financial statements.

Other Receivables—{ther receivables include interest receivables, reinsurance claims receivables, receivables from providers and suppliers and any
other receivables that do not relate to premiums.

Property and Equipment—Property, equipment and leasehold improvements are recorded at cost. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line
method aver the estimated lives of the related assets or, if shorter, over the terms of the respective leases.

Long-term Assets—Long-term assets include primarily assets associated with the Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan {"SERP” ) and the deferred
tax assets.

Business Combinations, Accounting for Goodwill and Other Intangibles—in June 2001, the FASB issued two standards related to business combina-
tions. The first statement, SFAS No. 141—"Business Combinations,” requires ail business combinations initiated after June 30, 2001 to be accounted
for using the purchase method and prohibits the pooling-of-interest method of accounting. SFAS No. 141 also states that acquired intangible assets
should be separately recognized upon meeting certain criteria. Such intangible assets include, but are not limited to, trade and service marks, non-compete
agreements, customer lists and licenses. The Company was not significantly affected by the implementation of this statement.

The second statement, SFAS No. 142—"Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” requires companies to cease amortization of goodwill. Rather, goodwill
and other intangible assets that have indefinite lives will be subject to a periodic assessment for impairment by applying a fair-value-based test. The
Company uses three approaches to identifying the fair value of its goodwill and other intangible assets: the market approach, the market capitalization
approach and the income approach. The market approach estimates a business’s fair value by analyzing the recent sales of similar companies. The mar-
ket capitalization approach is based on market value of the Company's total shares outstanding. The income approach is based on the present value of
expected future cash flows. As impairment charges occur, write-downs charges will be recorded in the period in which the impairment took place. As
required, the Company adopted SFAS No. 142 for the fiscal year beginning January 1, 2002, and, accordingly, goodwill was not amortized during 2002
nor 2003. See Note C to consolidated financial statements for disclosure related to intangible assets.



Medical Claims Liabilities and Expense—Medical claims liabilities consist of actual claims reported but not paid and estimates of health care services
incurred but not reported. The estimated claims incurred but not reported are based on histaorical data, current enrollment, health service utilization sta-
tistics and other related information. in determining 1BNR liabilities, the Company employs standard actuarial reserve methods that are specific to sach
market'’s membership, product characteristics, geographic territories and provider network. The Company also considers utilization frequency and unit
costs of inpatient, outpatient, pharmacy and other medical expenses, as well as claim payment backlogs and the timing of provider reimbursements.
The Company also establishes reserves, if required, for the probability that anticipated future health care costs and contract maintenance costs under
the group of existing contracts will exceed anticipated future premiums and reinsurance recoveries on those contracts. These accruals are continually
monitored and reviewed, and as settlements are made or accruals adjusted, differences are reflected in current operations. Changes in assumptions for
medical costs caused by changes in actual experience could cause these estimates to change in the near term.

The following table shows the components of the change in medical liabilities (Medical claims liahilities and Other medical liabilities) for the years
ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively:

2003 2002 2001
Medical liabilities, Beginning of Period § 558,599 § 522864 § 444887
Acquisitions 38,828 30,778 34,627
Reported medical costs
Current year 3,693,821 2,985,472 2,679,337
Prior year (86,532) (65,973) (28,344)
Totat reported medical costs $3,607,289 $2,919,499 $2,650,993
Claim payments
Payments for current year 3,235,902 2,527,999 2,259,523
Payments far prior year 371,624 386,533 348,130
Total claim payments $3,607,526 $2,914,532 $2,607,653
Medical liabilities, End of Period $ 597,190 $ 558,599 § 522854

Acquisition balances represent medical liabilities as of the applicable acquisition date. Subsequent changes in estimates related to the acquired bal-
ances are recorded as adjustments to the settlement account with the acquired entity’s previous owner.

The negative amounts noted as “prior year” medical costs are favorable adjustments for claim estimates being settled for amounts less than originally
anticipated. As noted above, these favorable restatements from original estimates occur due to changes in medical utilization, mix of provider rates and
other components of medical cost trends.

The Company believes that the amount of medical liabilities is adequate to cover its ultimate liability for unpaid claims as of December 31, 2003; how-
ever, actual claim payments and other items may differ from established estimates. Assuming a hypothetical 1% variance between the December 31,
2003 estimates of medical liabilities and actual costs payable, net earnings for the year ended December 31, 2003, would increase or decrease by
approximately $3.8 million and diluted earnings per share would increase or decrease by approximately $0.04 per share.

Other Long-term Liabilities—Other Long-term Liabilities consist primarily of liabilities associated with the SERP and the deferred tax liability associated
with the net unrealized gains on investments.

Revenue Recognition—Managed care premiums are recorded as revenue in the month in which members are entitled to service. Premiums are based
on a per subscriber contract rate and the subscribers in the Company’s records at the time of billing. Premium billings are generally sent to employers
in the month preceding the month of caverage. Premium billings may be subsequently adjusted to reflect changes in membership as a result of retroac-
tive terminations, additions, or other changes. The Company also receives premium payments from the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services
{"CMS"} on a monthly basis for its Medicare+Choice membership. Membership and category eligibility are pericdically reconciled with CMS and could
resuft in adjustments to revenue. Premiums collected in advance are recorded as deferred revenue. Employer contracts are typically on an annual basis,
subject to cancellation by the employer group cr by the Company upan 30 days notice.

Based on information received subsequent to premium billings being sent, historical trends, bad debt write-offs and the collectibility of specific
accounts, the Company estimates, on a monthly basis, the amount of bad debt and future retroactivity and adjusts its revenue and reserves accordingly.
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Premiums for services to federal employee groups are subject to audit and review by the Office of Personnel Management ("OPM”) on a periodic basis.
Such audits are usually a number of years in arrears. Adjustments are recorded as additional information regarding the audits and reviews becomes
available. Any differences between actual results and estimates are recorded in the year the audits are finalized.

The Company currently enters into performance guarantees with employer groups where the Company guarantees that it will meet certain standards.
These standards vary widely and could involve customer service, member satisfaction, claims processing, claims accuracy and telephone on-hold time.
Under these performance guarantees, the Company could be at risk for not maintaining the standards agreed upon in the contracts. The risk level varies
by agreement with penalties based on a variety of calculations including per member per month, percentage of premium, or percentage of administra-
tion fees. Performance levels are evaluated at least quarterly. The Company estimates its potential exposure and records the appropriate reserves. The
penalties that the Company have incurred have been immaterial and, although, the Company can not predict with precision the future effect on its
results of operations of these penalties, the Company expects them to remain immaterial.

Stock-based Compensation—The Company accounts for stock-based compensation to empioyees under Accounting Principles Board (“APB”) No. 25—
“Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,” and complies with the disclosure requirements for SFAS No. 123—"Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation” and SFAS No. 148—"Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation—Transition and Disclosure.” Unless the accounting rules change, the
Company does not expect to transition to the fair value method of accounting for stock-based compensation. Had compensation cost for these plans
been determined consistent with SFAS No. 123, the Company’s net earnings and earnings per share ("EPS") would have been reduced to the following
pro-forma amounts {in thousands, except per share data):

Years Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001
Net garnings, as reported $250,145 $145,603 $84,407
Add: Stock-based employee compensation expense included in reported net earnings, net of related tax effects 6,169 3,655 948
Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation expense determined
under fair-value-based method for all awards, net of related tax effects (11,170) (7.503) {4,354)
Net earnings, pro-forma $245,144 $141,755 $81,001
Basic earnings per share:
as reported $ 284 $ 164 § 087
pro-forma $ 218 § 160 § 083
Diluted eamings per share:
as reported $ 275 $ 158 $ 083
pro-forma $ 270 $ 154 $ 079

The fair value of the stock aptions included in the pro-forma amounts shown above was estimated as of the grant date using the Black-Scholes option-
pricing model with the following weighted average assumptions:

2003 2002 2001
Dividend yield 0% 0% 0%
Expected volatility 68% 71% 73%
Risk-free interest rate 2% 2% 4%
Expected life 5.2 years 4.9 years 4.5 years

See Note G 1o consolidated financial statements for disclosure related to stock-based compensation.

income Taxes—The Company files a consolidated federal tax return for the Company and its subsidiaries. The Company accounts for income taxes in
accordance with SFAS No. 109—"Accounting for Income Taxes.” The deferred tax assets and/or liabilities are determined by multiplying the differ-
ences between the financial reporting and tax reporting bases for assets and liabilities by the enacted tax rates expected to be in effect when such dif-
ferences are recovered or settled. The effect on deferred taxes of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the
enactment date. See Note Fto consolidated financial statements for disclosures related to income taxes.



B. ACQUISITIONS

During the three years ended December 31, 2003, the Company completed several business combinations and membership purchases. The Company’s
business combinations are all accounted for using the purchase method of accounting, and, accordingly, the operating resufts of each acquisition have
been included in the Company's consolidated financial statements since their effective date of acquisition. The purchase price for each business com-
bination was allocated to the assets, including the identifiable intangible assets, and liabilities based on estimated fair values. The excess of the pur-
chase price over the net identifiable assets acquired was allocated to goodwill. Through December 31, 2001, goodwill was amortized over a useful life
of 35 years. In accordance with SFAS No. 142, effective January 1, 2002, the Company no longer amortizes goodwill, The purchase price of the
Company's membership purchases is allocated to identifiable intangible assets and is being amortized over a useful life of five to twenty years.

The following table summarizes all business combinations and membership purchases for the three years ended December 31, 2003. The purchase
price, in thousands, of each business combination includes the payment for net worth and transition costs. Transition costs are initial estimates of
future expenses based on historical experience and known costs. These estimates may be adjusted as actual expenses are incurred in effect modifying
the final purchase price of the acquisition. [n addition, the Company's acquisition agreements contain a provision far a final retroactive balance sheet
settlement after the effective date of the acquisition which may result in adjustments to the purchase price. The purchase price, in thousands, is inclu-
sive of all retroactive halance sheet settlements to date and transaction cost adjustments.

Purchase
Effective Date Market Price
Business Cambinations
Blue Ridge Health Alliance, Inc. {"Blue Ridge”) September 1, 2001 Virginia $14.850
NewAlliance Health Plan, Inc. {“NewAlliance") May 1, 2002 Pennsylvania $ 8,303
Mid-America Health Partners, Inc. {"Mid-America”) December 1, 2002 Kansas $41,260
PersonalCare Health Management, Inc. {“PersonalCare”) February 1, 2003 lilinois $20,116
Altius Health Plans, Inc. (“Altius”) September 1, 2003 Utah $46,698
Membership Purchases
Health Partners of the Midwest (“Health Partners”) January 1, 2001 Missauri $ 4863
Kaiser Foundation Health Pian of Kansas City, Inc. {"Kaiser-KC"} April 2, 2001 Kansas $ 6,498

C. GooDpWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Goodwill and other intangible assets consist of costs in excess of the fair value of the net tangible assets of subsidiaries or operations acquired through
December 31, 2003.

Goodwill

As described in the Company’s segment disclosure, assets are not allocated to specific products, and, accordingly, goodwill can nat be reported by
segment. The Company has completed its impairment test of goodwill and has determined that there was no impairment of goodwill as of October 1,
2003, the Company's annual revaluation date. The changes in the carrying amount of goodwil! for the year ended Deecember 31, 2003 and 2002 were-as
follows {in thousands):

2003 2002

Balance January 1, $243,746 $237,392
Acquisition of NewAlliance Health Plan, Inc. — 6,484
Acquisition of PersonalCare Health Management, Inc. 9,237 —
Acquisition of Altius Health Plans, Inc. 28,496 —
Transition cost adjustments (296) (130)

Impairment loss . — —

Balance December 31, $281,183 $243,746




The following table presents net earnings and earnings per share amounts restated to exclude goodwill amortization for the years ended December 31,

2003, 2002 and 2001 (in thousands, except per share data).

Years Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001
Reported net earnings $250,145 $145,603 $84,407
Goodwilt amortization — — 7,517
Adjusted net earnings $250,145 $145,603 $91,924
Basic eamings per share $ 284 $ 164 § 087
Goodwill amortization — — 0.07
Adjusted basic earnings per share $ 284 $ 164 $ 094
Diluted eamings per share $ 275 § 188 $ 083
Goodwill amortization — — 0.07
Adjusted diluted earnings per share $§ 275 § 158 $ 040
Other Intangible Assets
The ather intangible asset balances are as follows {in thousands}:
Gross Net
Carrying Accumulated Carrying Amortization
Amount Amortization Amount Period
As of December 31, 2003
Amortized other intangible assets:
Customer Lists $23,868 $ 4,718 $19,150 5-15 Years
HMO Licenses 11,600 3,403 8,197 15-20 Years
Total amortized other intangible assets $35,468 $ 8121 $27,347 —
Unamortized other intangible assets:
Trade Names $ 100 $ — $ 100 —
Total unamortized other intangible assets $ 100 § — $ 100 —
Total other intangible assets $35,568 $ 8121 $27,447 —
As of December 31, 2002
Amartized other intangible assets:
Customer Lists $25,474 $ 7,745 $17.729 5-15 Years
HMO Licenses 10,700 2,842 7,858 15-20 Years
Total amaortized other intangible assets $36,174 $10,587 $25,587 —
Unamartized other intangible assets:
Trade Names $ 100 § — $ 100 —
Total unamortized other intangible assets $ 100 5§ — $ 100 —
Total other intangible assets $36,274 $10,587 $25,687 —

Other intangible amortization expense for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 was $2.5 million, $3.1 million and $2.6 mitlion, respec-
tively. Estimated intangible amortization expense is $2.5 million for the years ending December 31, 2004 through 2006 and $2.4 million for the years
ending December 31, 2007 and 2008. The weighted average amortization period is 14 years for other intangible assets.




D. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment is comprised of the following (in thousands}):

December 31,

Depreciation

2003 2002 Period
Land $ 350 $§ 350 —
Buildings and leasehold improvements 11,698 12,981 540 Years
Equipment 97,764 101,990 3— 7 Years
Sub-total 109,812 115,321
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (76,727 (81,276)
Property and equipment, net $ 33,085 $ 34,045

Depreciation expense for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 was $15.6 million, $15.8 million and $15.8 millian, respectively.

E. INVESTMENTS

The Company considers all of its investments as available-for-sale securities and, accordingly, records unrealized gains and losses, except for those deter-
mined to be other-than-temporary impairments, as other comprehensive income in the stockholders' equity section of its consolidated balance sheets.

The amortized cost, gross unrealized gain or loss and estimated fair value of short-term and long-term investments by security type were as foflows at

December 31, 2003 and 2002 {in thousands):

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gain Loss Value

As of December 31, 2003
State and municipal bonds $ 3n,872 $11,721 $ (1M4) $ 382,879
U.S. Treasury & agency securities 154,057 3,669 {36) 157,690
Mortgage-backed securities 133,473 2734 (304) 135,903
Asset-backed securities 73,631 2,307 {235) 75,703
Corporate debt and other securities 390,484 11,130 {1,198) 400,416
$1,123,517 $31,561 $(2,487) $1,152,591

As of December 31, 2002
State and municipal bonds & 277667 $ 919 S (140} § 286,718
U.S. Treasury & agency securities 146,097 5,186 (185} 151,098
Mortgage-backed securities 127,385 4,928 (40} 132,273
Asset-backed securities 81,493 3130 (1,397) 83,226
Corporate debt and other securities 265,342 13,953 (258) 279,037
$ 897,984 $36,368 $(2,020) § 932,352
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The amortized cost and estimated fair value of short-term and long-term investments by contractual maturity were as follows at December 31, 2003 and
December 31, 2002 {in thousands);

Amortized Fair
Cost Value
As of December 31, 2003
Maturities:
Within 1 year $ 234,553 $ 236,036
1105 years 554,629 570,67
510 10 years 312,224 323,040
Over 10 years 221 22,844
Tatal short-term and long-term securities $1,123,517 $1,152,591
As of December 31, 2002
Maturities:
Within 1 year $ 103,620 $ 104,319
110 5 years 335,959 353,330
510 10 years 240,426 250,266
Over 10 years 217,979 224,437
Total short-term and long-term securities $ 897,984 $ 932352

Gross investment gains of $2.2 million and gross investment losses of $1.5 million were realized on sales of investments for the year ended December 31,
2003. This compares to gross investment gains of $1.9 million and gross investment losses of $3.1 million on these sales for the year ended December 31,
2002, and gross investment gains of $4.7 million and gross investment losses of $2.2 million on these sales for the year ended December 31, 20071,

The following table shows the Company's investments’ gross unrealized losses and fair value, at December 31, 2003, aggregated by investment cate-
gory and length of time that individual securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss position {in thousands).

Less Than 12 Months 12 Months or More Total

Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
Description of Securities Value Loss Value Loss Value Loss
State and municipal bonds $ 57,425 $ (714) § — $— $ 57,425 $ (714)
U.S. Treasury & agency securities 28,372 (161} — — 28,372 (161)
Mortgage-backed securities 20,923 (391) 3,270 (21) 24193 (412)
Asset-backed securities — — — — — —
Corporate debt and other securities 147,709 (1,200) — — 147,709 {1,200)

$254,429 $(2,486) $3,270 §(21) $257,698 $(2,487)

The securities referenced in this table do not meet the criteria for an other-than-temporarily impaired investment. These securities have an investment
grade credit rating. The current unrealized loss is the result of interest rate increases and not the credit ratings associated with these securities. These
investments are nat in high risk industries or sectors and the Company intends to hold these investments for a pericd of time sufficient to allow for a
recovery in market value.

F. INCOME TAXES

At December 31, 2003, the Company had approximately $63 million of federal and $151 million of state tax net operating loss carryforwards. The neat
operating losses were primarily acquired through various acquisitions. The net operating loss carryforwards can be used to reduce future taxable
income until they expire through the year 2021.



The provision for income taxes consists of the fallowing (in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001
Current provision:

Federal $124,821 $70,892 $42,298
State 9,189 7,100 7,851

Deferred provision:
Federal 7,026 1.883 1,263
State - 1,883 263 302
$142,919 $80,138 $51.714

The Company's effactive tax rate differs from the federal statutory rate of 35% as a result of the following:
Years Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001
Statutory federal tax rate 35.00% 35.00% 35.00%
Effect of:
State income taxes, net of federal taxas 2.34% 2.30% 3.40%
Release of state NOL valuation allowance (0.61%) — —
Amortization of goodwill — — 2.19%
Tax exempt interest income {0.93%) {1.13%) {1.46%)
Remuneration disallowed 0.92% — —
Other {0.36%) {0.67%) {1.14%)
income tax provision 36.36% 35.50% 37.99%

The effect of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities at December 31, 2003 and
2002 are presented below {in thousands):

December 31,

2003 2002
Deferred tax assets:
Deferred revenue $ 6,064 $ 5,690
Medical liabilities 1,024 5,186
Accounts receivable 538 1,108
Beferred compensation 11,828 10,340
Other accrued liabilities 18,495 20,660
Other assets 8,744 5,634
Net operating loss carryforwards 29,040 25,401
Gross deferred tax assets 81,732 74,019
Less valuation allowance (859) (3,252}
Deferred tax asset 80,873 70,767
Deferred tax liabilities:
Other liabilities (3,131) (1,108)
Intangibles (4,812) (3,562)
Unrealized gain on securities (11,235) (12,201
Gross deferred tax liabilities (19,178) {16,886)
Net deferred tax asset $ 61,695 $ 53,901

The valuation allowance for deferred tax assets is due to the Company's belief that the realization of the deferred tax asset resulting from net operating
losses associated with certain acquisitions is unlikely.
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G. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

Stock-Based Compensation

As of December 31, 2003, the Company had one stock incentive plan, the Amended and Restated 1998 Stock Incentive Plan {the “Stock Incentive Plan”)
under which shares of the Company's common stock were authorized for issuance to key employees, consultants and directors in the form of stock
options, restricted stock and other stock-based awards.

The Stock Incentive Plan is authorized to grant either incentive stock options or nonqualified stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock
and other stock-based awards at the discretion of the Compensation and Benefits Committee of the Board of Directors. At the annual meeting of share-
holders held on June 5, 2003, the Company’s shareholders voted to increase the shares of common stock authorized for issuance under the Stock
Incentive Plan from an aggregate of 13.5 million shares to an aggregate of 16.5 million shares. Shares available for issuance under the Stack Incentive
Plan were 1.8 million and 1.0 million as of December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Stock Options

Under the Stock Incentive Plan, the terms and conditions of option grants are established on an individual basis with the exercise price of the options
being equal to not less than 100% of the fair value of the underlying stack at the date of grant. Options generally become exercisable after one year in
25% increments per year and expire ten years from the date of grant. At December 31, 2003, the Stack Incentive Plan had outstanding options repre-
senting 5.4 million shares of common stock.

Transactions with respect to stock options granted under the Stock Incentive Plan for the three years ended December 31, 2003 were as follows (shares
in thousands}:

2003 2002 2001

Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Shares Exercise Price Shares Exercise Price Shares Exercise Price
Outstanding at beginning of year 5,702 $8.15 7,886 § 6.03 7,806 $ 6516
Granted 1,876 $28.36 705 $18.75 899 $11.90
Exercised (2,048) $7.11 (2,499) $ 447 {704) § 493
Cancelled (177) $16.21 (390) $7.99 {118) § 663
Outstanding at end of year 5,353 $15.36 5,702 $ 815 7,886 $ 6.03
Exercisable at end of year 2,725 $ 6.86 3,656 § 607 4937 $ 4.99

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Number Weighted Average Weighted Number Weighted
Range of Outstanding Remaining Average Exercisable Average
Exercise Prices at 12/31/03 Contractual Life Exercise Price at 12/31/03 Exercise Price
$ 3.00-% 4.99 965 57 $ 4.44 953 $ 4.43
$ 5.00-% 7.99 1,420 5.0 $ 6.39 1,383 $6.38
$ 8.00-$19.99 1,198 78 $14.98 326 $12.68
$20.00-834.93 1,770 9.4 $28.79 63 $23.84
§ 3.00-$34.93 5.353 72 $15.36 2,125 $ 6.86

The weighted average grant date fair values for options granted in 2003, 2002 and 20071 were $10.69, $10.44 and $6.78, respectively.

Restricted Stock Awards

During 2003, the Company awarded 534,000 shares of restricted stock with varying vesting periods through 2007. The fair value of the restricted shares, at
the grant date, is amortized over the vesting period. The restricted stock shares were granted at a weighted average fair value of $28.35. The Company
recorded compensation expense related to restricted stock grants of $9.6 mitlion, $5.7 million and $1.5 million for the years ended December 31, 2003,
2002 and 2001, respectively. The deferred portion of the restricted stock as reported in additional paid in capital is $23.4 million at December 31, 2003.



Empioyee Stock Purchase Plan

The Company’s Employee Stack Purchase Plan, implemented in 1994, allows substantially all employees who meet length of service requirements ta set
aside a portion of their salary for the purchase of the Company’s comman stock. At the end of each plan year, the Company issues the stock to partici-
pating employees at an issue price equal to 85% of the lower of the stock price at the end of the plan year or the average stock price, as defined. The
Company has reserved 1.4 million.shares of stock for this plan and has issued 25,696, 16,495 and 13,912 shares in 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

Employee Retirement Plans

As of December 31, 2003, the Company had three defined contribution retirement plans gualifying under the Internal Revenue Code Section 401(k): the
Coventry Health Care, Inc. Retirement Savings Plan (the “Savings Plan"}; Mid-America Health Partners Inc. 401(k) and Investment Plan {the "MAH
Plan"}; and the Aftius SaveMore 401(k) Plan (the “Aftius Plan”). All employees of Coventry Health Care, Inc. and employees of its subsidiaries can elect
to participate in the Savings Plan. The Savings Plan assets were held by {1) Principal Life Insurance Company, as funding agent of the assets held under
the terms of the Flexibla Investment Annuity Contract with Coventry Health Care, Inc., (2} Delaware Charter Guarantee and Trust Company, as custodial
trustee of the mutual funds and {3) Bankers Trust Company, as custodial trustee of the Savings Plan's participant loans and the Coventry Health Care,
fnc. common stock. Effective January 1, 2004, T. Rowe Price became the custodial trustee of the mutual funds, Savings Plan, participant loans and the
Coventry Health Care, inc. commaon stock in the Savings Plan.

Under the Savings Plan, participants may defer up to 15% of their eligible compensation, limited by the maximum compensation deferral amount per-
mitted by applicable law. The Company makes matching contributions in the Company’s common stock equal to 100% of the participant’s contribution
on the first 3% of the participant's eligible compensation and equal to 50% of the participant’s contribution on the second 3% of the participant’s eligi-
ble compensation. Participants will vest in the Company's matching contributions in 50% increments annually on their anniversary date over a period of
twao years of service with the Company. All costs of the Savings Plan’s are funded by the Company and participants as they are incurred.

Several acquisitions have been completed since the adoption of the Savings Plan. Pursuant to specific terms of each acquisition's respective merger
agreement, the surviving entity (1) became an adopting employer of the Savings Plan, and/or (2) commenced participation in the Savings Plan following
approval by the Company’s Board of Directors.

Merged/Acquired Entity Effective Date
Blue Ridge Health Alliance, Inc.” September 1, 2001
NewAlliance Health Plan, Inc.” July 1, 2002
Mid-America Health Partners, Inc.® December 2, 2002
PersonaiCare Health Management, Inc #® February 1, 2003
Altius Health Plans, Inc."®@ January 1, 2004

timmediately upon participation in the Savings Plan, all participant account balances included in the assets of the former qualified retirement plan were
rolled over into the Savings Plan and employees were permitted to commence participation in the Savings Plan, except for participants of the former
Mid-America Health Partners. All employees of the former Mid-America Health Partners were eligible to participate in the Savings Plan effective
December 2, 2002; however their balance in the MAH Plan remained in the MAH Plan. The MAH Plan was terminated effective December 1, 2002 and
the MAH Plan assets will remain until the earlier of (i) termination of employment with Coventry or one of its affiliates; or (i} receipt of the Internal
Revenue Service determination letter approving the termination of the MAH Plan. No contributions were made to the MAH Plan after December 1,
2002. The MAH Plan assets are held by Fidelity Management Trust Company, as funding agent of the assets held under the terms of the Plan and Trust.
All participants in the MAH Plan were 100% vested in employer matching contributions as of December 1, 2002. All costs of the MAH Plan are funded
by the Company and participants as they are incurred. All employees of Altius were eligible to partictpate in the Savings Plan effective January 1, 2004.
The Altius Plan was frozen effective December 31, 2003 and the Plan assets will be merged with and into the Savings Plan on February 2, 2004. No con-
tributions were made to the Altius Plan after December 31, 2003. The Altius Plan assets are held by Reliance Trust Company, as funding agent of the
assets held under the terms of the Plan and Trust. All participants in the Altius Plan were 100% vested in employer matching contributions as of
September 1, 2003. All costs of the Altius Plan are funded by the Company and participants as they are incurred.
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Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan

As of December 31, 2003, the Company was the sponsor of a Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan (the "SERP”), currently known as the Coventry
Health Care, Inc. Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan. Under the SERP, participants may defer up to 15% of their base salary and up to 100% of any
bonus awarded. The Company makes matching contributions equal to 100% of the participant’s contribution on the first 3% of the participant’s com-
pensation and 50% of the participant’s contribution on the second 3% of the participant's compensation. Participants vest in the Company’s matching
contributions ratably over two years. All costs of the SERP are funded by the Company as they are incurred.

The cost, principally emplayer matching contributions, of the Savings Plan and the SERP charged to operations for 2003, 2002 and 2001 was $7.3 mil-
lion, $5.4 million and $5.6 million, respectively.

H. SENIOR NOTES

On February 1, 2002, the Company completed a transaction to sell $175.0 million original 8.125% senior notes due February 15, 2012 in a private place-
ment. These senior notes were then registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission. The proceeds from the sale of senior notes were used to
purchase, from Principal Health Care, Inc., 7.1 million shares of Coventry commeon stock and a warrant exercisable, at that time, for 3.1 million shares
of Coventry common stock. The aggregate purchase price for the shares of common stock and the warrant was $176.1 million. Interest on the notes is
payable an February 15 and August 15 each year.

In August 2003, the Company repurchased a portion of its senior notes with a face value of $4.5 million and a weighted average premium of 8.9%. The
Company recorded a loss on the repurchase in accordance with SFAS No. 145 which requires gains and Iosses on extinguishments of debt to be classified
as income or loss from continuing operations. The toss of $0.5 million was included as additional senior notes interest expense. The carrying value of the
senior notes is equal to the face value and the fair value is based on the quoted market prices. As of December 31, 2003, the carrying value was $170.5
million and the fair value was $189.7 million. As of December 31, 2002, the carrying value was $175.0 million and the fair value was $182.0 million.

The senior notes contain certain covenants and restrictions regarding incurring additional debt, limiting dividends or other restricted payments, and restrict-
ing transactions with affiliates, sales of assets and consolidations or mergers. The Company has complied with all covenants under the senior notes.

I. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company is contractually obligated to make the following payments within the next five years and thereafter (in thousands):

Payments Due by Period

Less Than More Than
Contractual Obligations Total 1 Year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years 5 Years
Senior notes $170,500 § — $ — § — $170,500
Interest payable on senior notes 117,751 13,853 27,706 27,706 48,486
Operating leases 84,546 16,560 28,775 18,553 20,652
Total contractual obligations 372,797 30,413 56,481 46,265 239,638
Less sublease income {10,506) (1,439) (2,351) {2,050) {4,666}
Net contractual obligations $362,291 $28,974 $54,130 $44.215 $234,972

Leases
The Company operates primarily in leased facilities with original lease terms of up to ten years with options for renewal. Through its acquisitions, the
Company has office equipment leases with terms of approximately three years.

Total rent expense was $17.4 million, $15.2 million and $15.3 million, for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.



Legal Proceedings

in the normal course of business, the Company has been named as a defendant in various legal actions such as actions seeking payments for claims
denied by the Company, medical malpractice actions, employment related claims and other various claims seeking monetary damages. The claims are
in various stages of proceedings and some may ultimately be brought to trial. Incidents occurring through December 31, 2003 may result in the asser-
tion of additional claims. The Company carries general liability insurance for each of the Company's operations on a claims-made basis with varying
deductibles for which the Company maintains reserves. The Company maintains general liability, professional liabitity and employment practices liabil-
ity insurance in amounts that the Company believes is appropriate. The professional liability and employment practices ligbility insurances are carried
through the Company’s captive subsidiary.

The Company's captive subsidiary provides up to $5 million in professional liability coverage for each single claim and up to $10 million in coverage for
each class action claim. The captive professional liability policy has an aggregate limit of $20 million per year, The captive is also co-insured with a
commercial carrier for an additional $10 million for professional liability claims. Additionally, the captive employment practices liability policy provides
up to $250,000 per single claim, $10 million per class action claim, and an aggregate policy limit of $10 million. Each year the Company will re-evalu-
ate the most cost-effective methad for insuring these types of claims.

Coventry Health Care, Inc. is a defendant in the provider track in the Managed Care Litigation filed in the United States District Court for the Southern
District of Florida, Miami Division, MDL No. 1334, styled in re. Humana, inc., Charfes B. Shane, MD, et al. vs. Humana, Inc., st al. This action was filed
by a group of physicians as a class action against Coventry and twelve other companies in the managed care industry. In its fourth amended complaint,
the plaintiffs have alleged violations of the federal racketeering act, Racketeer Influenced and Corrupt Organizations {"RICO"), conspiracy to violate
RICO and aiding and abetting a scheme to violate RICO. In addition to these RICO claims, the complaint includes counts for breach of contract, viola-
tions of various state prompt payment laws and equitable claims for unjust enrichment and quantum meruit. Coventry has filed a motion to dismiss
each of these claims because they fail to state a cause of action or, in the alternative, to compe! arbitration pursuant to the arbitration provisions which
exist in the Company's physician contracts. In respense to the motion 1o dismiss, the trial court dismissed several of the claims and ordered that all
physicians who have an arbitration provision in their provider contracts must submit all of their claims to arbitration. As a consequence of this ruling,
all the plaintiffs who have arbitration provisions voluntarily dismissed all of their arbitratable claims. The trial court excluded from the scope of claims
subject to arbitration, the plaintiffs’ claims of conspiracy, conspiracy to violate RICO and aiding and abetting violations of RICO. The defendants, includ-
ing Coventry, have appealed the trial court's decision to the 11th Circuit Court of Appeals. The appeal has been fully briefed and the parties are await-
ing a date for oral argument. The trial court has certified various subclasses of physicians; however, Coventry is not subject to the class certification
order because the motion to certify was filed before Coventry was joined as a defendant. The plaintiffs have now filed a motion to certify a class as to
Coventry, and Coventry has filed their opposition to that mation. The trial court has not yet issued a rufing on the motion. The defendants who were sub-
Ject ta the certification order filed an appeal to the 11th Circuit which has been argued. The appeals court has not yet issued its decision. Subsequent
to this appeal, two companies have entered into settlement agreements with the plaintiffs. Both settlement agreements have been filed with the Court
and have received final approval. Although the Company can not predict the outcome, management believes that this lawsuit will not have a material
adverse effect on its financial position or our results of operations. Management also believes that the claims asserted in this lawsuit are without
merit, and the Company intends to defend its position.

The Company may be the target of other similar lawsuits involving RICO and the Employee Retirement Income Security Act, generally claiming that
managed care companies overcharge consumers and misrepresent that they deliver quality health care. Although the Company may be the target of
other similar lawsuits, the Company believes there is no valid basis for such lawsuits.

The Company's industry is heavily regulated and the laws and rules governing the industry and interpretations of those laws and rules are subject to
frequent change. Existing or future laws could have a significant effect on the Company’s operations.
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Capitation Arrangements

A small percentage of the Company's membership is covered by global capitation arrangements. Under the typical arrangement, the provider receives
a fixed percentage of premium to cover all the medical costs provided to the globally capitated members. Under some capitated arrangements, physi-
cians may also receive additional compensation from risk-sharing and other incentive arrangements. Global capitation arrangements limit the
Company's exposure to the risk of increasing medical costs, but expose the Company to risk as to the adequacy of the financial and medical care
resources of the pravider organization. In addition to global capitation arrangements, the Company has capitation arrangements for ancillary services,
such as mental health care. The Company is responsible for the coverage of its members pursuant to its customer agreements. To the extent that the
respective provider organization faces financial difficulties or otherwise is unable to perform its obligations under the capitation arrangements, the
Company will be required to perform such obligations. Consequently, the Company may have to incur costs in excess of the amounts it would otherwise
have to pay under the ariginal global or ancillary capitation arrangements. Medical costs associated with capitation arrangements made up approxi-
mately 9.9%, 8.9%, and 8.8% of the Company’s total medical costs for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. Membership
associated with global capitation arrangements was approximately 145,000, 116,000 and 84,000 as of December 31, 2003, 2002 and 20071, respectively.

Federal Employees Health Benefits Program

The Company contracts with the Office of Personnel Management {“OPM”) to provide managed health care services under the Federal Employee Health
Benefits Program (“FEHBP"). These contracts with the OPM and applicable government regulations establish premium rating arrangements for this pro-
gram. The OPM conducts periodic audits of its cantractors to, among other things, verify that the premiums established under its contracts are in com-
pliance with the community rating and other requirements under FEHBP. The OPM may seek premium refunds or institute other sanctions against health
plans that participate in the program.

HealthAmerica Pennsylvania, Inc. {"HealthAmerica“), the Company's Pennsylvania HMO subsidiery, received audit reports from the OPM that ques-
tioned approximately $31.1 million of subscription charges that were paid to HealthAmerica under the FEHBP for contract years 1993-1999. In the
fourth quarter of 2003, HealthAmerica, settled this dispute with the OPM and the U.S. Department of Justice. The final settlement payment of $29.0
million was fully reserved by HealthAmerica and therefore had no impact on 2003 earnings, the regulated capital of HealthAmerica, or the Company’s
consolidated stockholders’ equity.

J. CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK

The Company's financial instruments that are exposed to credit risk consist primarily of cash equivalents, investments in fixed income securities and
accounts receivable. The Company invests its excess cash in state and municipal bonds, U.S. Treasury and agency securities, mortgage-backed securi-
ties, asset-backed securities, corporate debt and other securities. Investments in marketable securities are managed within guidelines established by
the Board of Directors, which require investment-grade fixed income securities and limit the amount that may be invested in any one issuer. The fair
value of the Company’s financial instruments is equivalent to their carrying value and, although there is some credit risk associated with these instru-
ments, the Company believes this risk to be minimal.

Concentration of credit risk with respect to receivables is limited due to the large number of custamers comprising the Company’s customer base and
their breakdown among geographical locations. The Company believes the allowance for doubtful accounts adequately provides for estimated losses as
of December 31, 2003. The Company has a risk of incurring losses if such allowances are not adequate.

K. STATUTORY INFORMATION

The Company’s HMO and insurance company subsidiaries are required by state regulatory agencies to maintain minimum surplus balances, thereby limiting the
dividends the parent may receive from its regulated entities. During 2003, the Company collected $108.7 million in dividends from its regulated subsidiaries.

The National Assaciation of Insurance Commissioners (“NAIC”) has proposed that states adopt risk-based capital ("RBC”) standards that, if adopted,
would generally require higher minimum capitalization requirements for HMOs and other risk-bearing health care entities. RBC is a method of measuring
the minimum amaunt of capital deemed appropriate for a managed care organization to support its overall business operations with consideration for its
size and risk profile. This calculation, approved by the NAIC, incorporates asset risk, underwriting risk, credit risk and business risk companents. The
Company's health plans are required to submit an RBC report to the NAIC and their domiciled state's department of insurance with their annual filing.



The RBC results will then be used to determine if the health plan’s statutory nat warth is adeguate to support the amount of its calculated risk profile.
Regulators will also use the RBC results to determine if any regulatory actions are required. Regulatory actions that could take place, if any, range from
filing a financia! action plan explaining how the plan will increase its statutory net worth to the aporoved levels, to the health plan being placed under
regulatory control.

The majarity of states in which the Company operates health plans have adopted an RBC policy that recommends the health plans maintain statutory
reserves at or above the ‘Company Action Level” which is currently equal to 200% of their RBC. The Company has adopted an internal policy to main-
tain all of its requlated subsidiaries’ statutory reserves at or above 250% of their RBC. Some states in which the Company's regulated subsidiaries oper-
ate, require deposits to be maintained with the respective states’ departments of insurance. The table below summarizes the Company’s statutory
reserve information, as of December 31, 2003 and 2002 {in millions except percentage data).

2003 2002
Capital and surplus $588.6 $437.1
250% of RBC 3745 3159
Excess capital and surplus above 250% of RBC 2141 121.2
Capital and surplus as a percentage of RBC 393% 346%
Statutory deposits 232 19.5

The increase in capitat and surplus for the Company's regulated subsidiaries is a result of income during 2003 and the acquisitions of PersonalCare and
Altius, offset by dividends paid to the parent company. The increase in statutory deposits is mainly a result of the acquisitions of PersonalCare and Altius.

Excluding funds held by entities subject to regulation, the Company had cash and investments of approximately $209.5 million and $86.7 million at
December 31, 2003 and December 31, 2002, respectively. The increase in non-regulated cash and investments is primarily a result of dividends received
from subsidiaries mentioned above and ordinary operating activities offset by payments for acquisitions. During the year ended December 31, 2003,
Coventry made capital contributions of approximately $14.1 million to the Company's HMO subsidiaries. This contribution was almost exclusively made
to the Company's recently acquired Altius Health Plan in order to increase capital to appropriate levels.

L. OTHER INCOME
Other income for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 inciudes investment income, net of fees, of approximately $40.2 million, $40.9
million and $43.2 million, respectively.

M. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share are based on the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share assume
the exercise of all options and warrants and the vesting of all restricted stock using the treasury stock methad.
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The following table summarizes the earnings and the average number of common shares used in the calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share
{in thousands, except for per share amounts):

Per Share
Earnings Shares ~ Amount

Year Ended December 31, 2003
Basic earnings per share $250,145 88,113 $2.84
Effect of dilutive securities:
Options and warrants — 2,652

Diluted earnings per share $250,145 90,765 $2.75

Year Ended December 31, 2002
Basic eamnings per share $145,603 88,802 $1.64
Effect of dilutive securities:
Options and warrants — 3,063 —

Diluted earnings per share $145,603 91,865 $1.58

Year Ended December 31, 2001
Basic earnings per share

Earnings before cumulative effect—SFAS Nao. 133 $ 83529 97,485 $0.86
Cumulative effect—SFAS No. 133 878 — 0.01
Basic earnings per share § 84,407 97,485 $0.87

Diluted earnings per share
Earnings before cumulative effect—SFAS No. 133 $ 83,529 97,485
Effect of dilutive securities:

Options and warrants — 4,328
$ 83529 101,813 $0.82
Cumulative effect—SFAS No. 133 878 — 0.01
Diluted earnings per share § 84,407 101,813 $0.83

N. SHARE REPURCHASE PROGRAM

The Company's Board of Directors has approved a program to repurchase up to 10% of its outstanding common stock. Stock repurchases may be made
from time to time at prevailing prices on the open market, by block purchase or in private transactions. As a part of this program, the Company pur-
chased 5.6 million shares of its common stock from 1999 to 2002, which includes 3.3 million purchased in 2002 at an aggregate cost of $65.5 million.
The Company did not purchase any shares of its common stock in 2003 under this program. The total remaining common shares the Company are
autharized to repurchase under the program, including the new authorization, is approximately 3.8 million as of December 31, 2003.

O. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company has three reportable segments: Commercial, Medicare and Medicaid products. The products are provided to a cross section of employer
groups and individuals throughout the Company’s health plans. Commercial products include HMO, PPO and POS products. HMO products provide com-
prehensive health care benefits to members through a primary care physician. PPO and POS products permit members to participate in managed care
but allow them the flexibility to utilize out-of-network providers in exchange for increased out-of-pocket costs. The Company provides comprehensive
health benefits to members participating in Medicare and Medicaid programs and receives premium payments from federal and state governments.




The Company evaluates the performance of its operating segments and aliocates resources based on gross margin. Assets are not allocated to specific

products and, accordingly, can not be reported by segment. The following tables summarize the Company’s repartable segments through gross margin

and include a medical loss ratio {“MLR") calculation:

Years Ended December 31,

(in thousands} Commercial Medicare Medicaid Total
2003
Revenues $3,438,424 $480,258 $523,763 $4,442,445
Medical costs 2,746,236 402,688 458,365 3,607,289
Gross margin $ 692,183 $ 77,570 $ 65,398 $ 835156
MLR 79.9% 83.8% 87.5% 81.2%
2002
Revenues $2,614,370 $432,556 $457,289 $3,504,215
Medical costs 2,163,709 371,538 384,252 2,919,499
Gross margin $ 450,661 $ 61,018 $ 73,037 $ 584,716
MLR 82.8% 85.9% 84.0% 83.3%
2001
Revenues $2,347 614 $352,130 $383,081 $3,082,825
Medical costs 2,016,182 314,867 319,944 2,650,993
Gross margin $ 331432 $ 37,283 $ 63,137 $ 431,832
MLR 85.9% 89.4% 83.5% 86.0%

P. QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED)

The following is a summary of unaudited quarterly results of operations {in thousands, except per share data) for the years ended December 31, 2003

and 2002.
Quarters Ended
March 31, 2003 June 30, 2003 September 30, 2003 December 31, 2003
Operating revenues $1,065,418 $1,096,431 $1,149,989 $1,223,305
Operating earnings 69,454 91,255 102,094 103,394
Earnings before income taxes 76,165 99,104 107,179 110,616
Net earnings 49,507 63,427 67,523 69,688
Basic eamings per share 057 0.72 0.76 0.78
Diluted earnings per share 0.55 0.70 0.74 0.76.
Quarters Ended
March 31, 2002 June 30, 2002 September 30, 2002 December 31, 2002
Operating revenues $ 848,549 $ 890,113 $ 891,953 $ 946,290
Operating earnings 36,493 51,437 55,983 58,757
Earnings before income taxes 44,091 56,746 62,302 62,602
Net earnings 28,439 36,601 40,185 40,378
Basic earnings per share 0.31 0.41 0.45 0.46
Diluted earnings per share 0.30 0.40 0.44 0.45
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Q. SuBSEQUENT EVENTS (UNAUDITED)

On January 14, 2004, the Company announced that its Hllinois subsidiary, PersonalCare Health Management, Inc. {"PersonalCare”), had entered into a
renewal rights agreement with Rockford Health Systems whereby PersonalCare will serve as the carrier of chaice for the transition of Rockford Health
Plans’ business. Rockford Health Plans, a for-profit plan wholly owned by Rockford Health Systems, covers a seven-county service area and provides
health benefits to approximately 14,000 fully insured commercial members and 6,000 full-service self-insured members. Under the terms of the agree-
ment, Rockford Health Systems providers will become participating providers in PersonalCare’s network. The agreement expected to commence upon
final regulatory approvals.

Between January 1, 2004, and the date of this filing, under the share repurchase program previously approved by the Board of Directors, the Company
purchased 2.0 million shares of its common stock at an aggregate purchase price of $84.6 million. The remaining common shares the Company is
autharized to repurchase under the program is approximately 1.8 million.
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